_‘-—"'
FAMILY
HOMES FUNDS

FAMILY HOMES FUNDS LIMITED
Abuja, Nigeria

ANNUAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023



FAMILY HOMES FUNDS LIMITED

REF'ORT OF THE DIRECTORS, AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER NATIONAL DISCLOSURES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Contents

General Information

Report of Diréctors

Statement-of Diretigrs’ R_es'_pons_i_bllities

‘Statement of Corporate Responsihility for the Financial Statements’

Audited Financial Sfatements

independent Auditors”Report

Statement.of Profit or Loss'and Other Comprehensive Income.

Statement of Financial Position
Statement of Changes in Equity
Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to theFinanciai Statements:
Other National Disclostres:

Value Added Statement

Five-Year Financial simmary

Page

i2
13
14
15

15

By

52



FAMILY HOMES FUNDS LIMITED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

GENERAL INFORMATION

COUNTRY OF INCORPORATION

COMPANY REGISTRATION NUMBER

DIRECTORS

Chairman

Managing Director
Executive Director
Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

COMPANY SECRETARY

REGISTERED OFFICE

AUDITOR

COMPANY SOLICITORS

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Nigeria

RC1360519

Mr. Ademola Adebise

Mr. Abdul Mutallab Mukhtar

Dr. Emeka Henry Inegbu

Mr. Abdullahi Musa

Dr. Eniang Essien Nkang

Mrs. Bilikisu Usman

Mr. Sam N. Okagbue, FCArb

Arc. Musa Ahmed

Mrs. lieoma Taylaur (Representative of NSIA Property Investment
(Company)

Mr. Abdulgawil Bello (Representative of Federal Ministry of Finance
Incorporated)

Mr. Franklin J. Eseagwu

3rd Floor Sinoki House

Samuel Ademulegun Avenue
Central Business District 900211
Abuja

3rd Floor Sinoki House

Samuel Ademulegun Avenue
Central Business District 900211
Abuja

Ernst & Young
10th & 13th Floor UBA House
57 Marina, Lagos.

Banwo & Ighodalo

Plot 2669, Afri-Investment House
50 Aquiyi Ironsi Street, Wuse
Abuja

CBN Treasury Single Account



i

i

FAMILY HOMES FUNDS LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

The directors are pleased to present their annual report on the affairs of Family Homes Funds Limited (“the
Company™), together with the auditors’ report for the year ended 31 December 2023,

LEGAL FORM

The Company was incérporated as & private limited fability company in Nigeria under the Ccmpames and ‘Allied
Matters Act:2020 as Family Homes Funds Limited in 8 Séptermber 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The Company Is established to invest in and te purchase, acquire; hold, develap, work and turn to account: any land
(of any tenure), landed: property or réal estate of any kind whatsoever Gncluding proprletary Tights) inciuding but
net limited to-homes, housing:estates, buiidings, properties and all mannet of real property in Nigeria and relatet
mfrastructure and equipment, The Company also provide: fundmg for bullding.of low-cost houses for low-income
eadrners.

STATE OF AFFAIRS

in the opinian of the directors, the state of the Company’s affairs is satisfactory and there has Been no faterial
change since the reporting date, which would affect the finanéial statements s presented.

RESULT FOR THE YEAR

2023, 2022

000 K000
Reveniig : : 6 351 492 -5 104 077'-
Profit before taxation 4,059,362 2,049,627
Taxation (39.6",-1.08-) (589,398)
Profit-after taxation 3; 663 254- 1 450 229'
Total comprehensive profit for the yvear - 3,663,254 1,450,229
‘GIVIDEND -

At the board meeting on 14% August-2024, the board of directors proposed & final dividend of 5% on profit after

taxahon dmountmg toN183,162; 70020221 NT2, 511, /4503, The dividend s subject-to w:thholdlng tax.at
appmprna’ce rate.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND'EQUIPMENT

Infarmation refating to movement in property, plant and equipnient is as shown In note 11 to the: fibancial
statements. In fhie opinion of the Directors, the market value of the Company’s assets is not less than tha vatue
shown in the financial statements,




FAMILY HOMES FUNDS LIMITED
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS - Continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

DIRECTORS

The names of the Directors at the date of this report and of those who held office during the financial year are as
follows;

Chairman** Mr. Ademola Adebise

Chairman* Mr. Suleiman Barau

Managing Director Mr. Abdul Mutallab Mukhtar

Executive Director** Dr. Emeka Henry Inegbu

Executive Director** Mr. Abdullahi Musa

Non-Executive Director* Mr. Chiweze Allen Ukwuoma

Non-Executive Director* Mr. Mohammed Rashid Umar

Non-Executive Director* Ambassador Muhammadu Adamu Jumba

Non-Executive Director** Dr. Eniang Essien Nkang

Non-Executive Director** Mrs. Bilikisu Usman

Non-Executive Director** Mr. Sam N. Okagbue, FCArb

Non-Executive Director** Arc. Musa Ahmed

Non-Executive Director** Mrs. ljeoma Taylaur (Representative of NSIA Property Investment
Company)

Non-Executive Director** Mr. Abdulgawil Bello (Representative of Federal Ministry of Finance
Incorporated)

Non-Executive Director* Mr. Aminu Umar-Sadiq (Representative of NSIA Property Investment
Company)

Non-Executive Director* Ms. Aisha Shehu Omar (Representative of Federal Ministry of Finance)

*The Board of Directors of Family Homes Funds Limited was dissolved following the official pronouncement of the
Federal Government of Nigeria with effect from 19th June 2023. Consequently, the Non-Executive Directors of the
Company ceased from being Directors from that date.

** Following the official pronouncement by the Federal Government of Nigeria, the Executive and Non-Executive
Directors of the Family Homes Funds Limited were appointed with effect from 23 July 2024.

DIRECTORS INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

None of the directors has notified the Company for the purpose of section 303 of the Companies and Allied
Matters Act, 2020 of any declarable interest in contract in which the Company was involved during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

DIRECTORS INTEREST IN SHARES

For the purpose of section 301 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, 2020, none of the directors hold
shares in the company.

BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP

The issued shares of the Company as at 31 December 2023 were beneficially held as follows:

Shareholder Number of Shares %
NSIA Property Investment Company Limited 490,000 49
Ministry of Finance Incorporated 510,000 51

1,000,000 100



FAMILY HOMES FUNDS LIMITED

RERPORT OF THE DIRECTORS - Continued
EMPLOYMENT AND EMPLOYEES
CHARITABLE AND-OTHER DONATIONS

In compliance with sectionis 43-of the Companies.and Allied Matter Acts, 2020, the Company did not make-any
donatiop or gift to any political association-or for any:political purpose:during the year.

Employment of Disabled Persons
The Company gperates a non*dlscrlmlnatory policy |n the consideration of apphcations far empluyment

mciudmg those received from disabled persons. The Company's policy is that the most qualmed -and
expenenced persons are recru:ted for appropriate job: levéls frrespective of an apphcant's state-gf arlgm.

-ethnicity,, refigion-or phiysical condition. in the event of any employee becoming disabled in the course of
etnployment, the Companyisin a positionto-arrange appropriate: training to ensure the continuous employment

of such & person without subjécting him/her to any disadvantage in his/her career devélopment. No disabled
persor was in the employment of the Company as at 31 December 2023.

'Health, Safety and' Welfare of Employees

The Company maintains business-premises désigneéd with & viéw t¢ guaranieeing the safety and healthy living

ronditions of its employees and customers alike, Health, safety and fire drills are regularly ordanized to keep

employaes alert-at al} times. Employees are adequately insured against occupational hazards. In addition, the

CGompany provides medical Tacilities to its employees and their immediate families at ts expense.

Emplovee Involvement and Teaining

The: Company encourages, parncmatmn of amployees in-arriving at dacisions if respect of matters. affectmg
their-wellbeing: Towards this end, the Company provides opportunities for. employees to defiberate-on issues
affectmg the. Cumpany and-employees' interests, with a view to: makmg inputs,_to decisions ther_' . The
Company: places a;high. premium .on the deveiopment ofits manpower Consequentiy, tha Company spcnser S
its employees torvarious training ¢ourses both in Nigerla and abroad:

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

As stated in Note 32. the Dirgctors are notaware of any. matters of circumstances-arising $ince the-end of the
reportlnq date; not otherwise:dealt W|th in the annual fmanual statements which materially affect the fmanual'
statements of fRe-Company.

AUD!_TQRS-

" The auditor, Efnst & Young, havipg indicated: their wilingness, will continué in officé ds the auditer in

accordance with Section 401(2) of the Companies.and Allied Mattérs Act 2020,

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Frankiin J. Eseagwu

2024



FAMILY HOMES FUNDS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

The Companies and Allied Matters Act, 2020, requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each
financial year that give a true and fair view of the state of financial affairs of the Company at the end of the year and
of its profit or loss. The responsibilities include ensuring that the Company:

a) keeps proper accounting records that disclose, with reasonable accuracy, the financial position and financial
performance of the Company in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards, compliance
with the requirements of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, 2020 and Financial Reporting Council of
Nigeria (Amendment) Act, 2023;

b) establishes adequate internal controls to safeguard its assets and to prevent and detect fraud and other
irregularities; and

c) prepares its financial statements using suitable accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent
judgments and estimates and are consistently applied.

The directors accept responsibility for the annual financial statements, which have been prepared using appropriate
accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates, in conformity with International
Financial Reporting Standards issued by International Accounting Standards Board, Financial Reporting Council of
Nigeria (Amendment) Act, 2023 and the requirements of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, 2020.

The directors are of the opinion that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the financial
affairs of the Company and of its financial performance for the year ended 31 December 2023. The directors further
accept responsibility for the maintenance of accounting records that may be relied upon in the preparation of
financial statements, as well as adequate systems of internal financial control.

Nothing has come to the attention of the directors to indicate that the company will not remain a going concern for
at least twelve months from the date of this statement.

( \ ey, 5o~
o X
Abdul Mutallab Mukhtar Ademola Adebise
Managing Director Chairman
FRC/2023/PRO/DIR/003/100126 FRC/2013/ICAN/00000002115
2024




FAMILY HOMES FUNDS LIMITED -

STATEMENT OF CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Certification Pursuant to Section 405(1) of Companies and Allied Matter Act, 2020

We the undersigned hereby certify the following with regards to our Audited Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31, 2023 that:

a. We have reviewed the audited financial statement, and based on our knowledge:

(i) the audited financial statements do not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state a material
fact, which would make the statements misleading;

(i) the audited financial statements and all other financial information included in the statements fairly present, in
all material respects, the financial condition and results of operation of the Company as of and for, the periods
covered by the audited financial statements.

b. We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls and we have:

i) designed internal controls to ensure that material information relating to the Company is made known to us
during the year ended 31 December 2023;

ii) evaluated the effectiveness of the Company's internal controls within 90 days prior to the date of the audited
financial statements; and

iii) presented in the report our conclusion about the effectiveness of our internal controls based on evaluation as
that date.

¢. We disclosed to the auditor of the Company:

i)  that there are no significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely
affect the Company's ability to record, process, summarise and report financial data; and has identified for the
Company's auditor, any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

i) that there are no fraud ,whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in Company's internai controi; and

d. Thatthere were no significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that significantly affected internal
controls subsequent to the date of evaluation, including any corrective actlons with regard to significant
deficiencies and material weakness. ]

F L L
S - = /\

Y

Abdul Mutallab Mukhtar

keiru Arum FCA

Managing Director Chief Finance Officer
FRC/2023/PRO/DIR/003/100126 FRC/2019/ICAN/00000019990

2024




Ernst & Young Tel: +234 (01) 631 4500
10th Floor Fax: +234 (01) 463 0481
UBA House Email: Services@ng.ey.com

Building a better 57, Marina _ www.ey.com
working world P. 0. Box 2442, Marina
Lagos.

Independent Auditor's Report
To the Members of Family Homes Funds Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Family Homes Funds Limited ("The Company"), which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
Family Homes Funds Limited as at 31 December 2023, and its financial performance and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting
Standard Board, the provisions of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, 2020 and in compliance with the
Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria (Amendment) Act, 2023.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibiiities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements in Nigeria, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the document titled “Family Homes Funds Limited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended
31 December 2023", which includes the Report of the Directors, Statement of Directors' Responsibilities in
Relation to the preparation of the Financial Statements, Statement of Corporate Responsibility for the
Financial Statements, and Other National Disclosures, which we obtained prior to the date of this report , and
the Annual Report, which is expected to be made available to us after that date . Other information does not
include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express an audit
opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

A mambar firm af Eract B Veasrnm Clabal § naitnd
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Family Homes Funds Limited - Continued

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards, the provisions of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, 2020
and in compliance with the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria (Amendment) Act, 2023, and for such
internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high ievei of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the company's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the Directors.

e Conclude onthe appropriateness of the Directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

10
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Independent Auditor's Report
To the Members of Family Homes Funds Limited - Continued

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and material audit findings, including any material deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the requirement of the Fifth Schedule of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, 2020, we
confirm that:

> we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief,
were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

> in our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Company, in so far as it appears from
our examination of those books; and

> The Company's statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other
mprehensive income are in agreement with the books of account.

- _,r/
Funmi Ogunlowo FCA
FRC/2013/PRO/ICAN/004/00000000681
For Ernst & Young

Lagos, Nigeria

30t h August 2054

11
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FAMILY HOMES FUNDS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER CGMPREHENS_IVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Revenue

Finance Income

Other'intome

QOperating and administrative axpenses
Finance cost’

Profit before tax
Income.tax expense

Profit for the year

Other comprebensive income

Totat comprehensive profit for the year

Basic earnings per share (Na_ira;

See notes to.the financial statements

Notes

6.1
6.2

7.1

10

12

2023
000
6.:351,492
4,474,542
19,075,

(3,049,361)

(3,736,357

4,059,362
(396,108)

3,663,252

2022

N Q60
5,104,077
2,696,960
88,573

(3,828;880)

{2,011,103)

(599,398).
1,450,229



FAMILY HOMES FUNDS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023

2023 2022
Assets Notes N 000 N 000
Non-current assets
Property plant and equipment 11 232,335 176,196
Intangible assets 12 174,388 142,722
Right of use Asset 13 78,556 57,445
investment properties 14 1,259,966 1,259,966
Sinking fund investment 23.2 5,557,888 6,253,845
Loan receivables 15 67,729,377 69,137,600
Deferred tax asset 10 22,760 -
75,055,270 77,027,774
Current assets
Property inventories 16 21,743,116 19,796,384
Trade and other receivables 17 2,668,705 1,887,553
Cash and cash equivalents 18 54,988,845 30,595,711
79,400,666 52,279,648
Total assets 154,455,936 129,307,422
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Share capital i9 1,000 1,000
Capital grant 20.1 89,000,000 85,500,000
Retained earnings 21 7,227,166 3,636,424
Total equity 96,228,166 89,137,424
Non-current liability
Loans and borrowings 23.1 40,959,309 26,139,442
Deferred Income Grant 20.2 5,880,645 4,800,000
Deferred tax liability i0 - 3,602
Total non-current liability 46,839,954 30,943,044
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 22 6,294,962 4,322,618
Loans and borrowings 23 4,514,768 4,248,684
Income tax payable 10 578,086 655,652
Total current liabilities 11,387,816 9,226,954
Total liabilities 58,227,770 40,169,998
Total Equity and Liabilities 154,455,936 129,307,422
The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 24 and sigfed on its behalf by:
L L 3 L\ |
\Wo>” ..t G N / N o
Ademola Adebise Abdul Mutallab Mukhtar NKeiru Arum FCA
Chairman Managing Director Chief Finance Officer

FRC/2013/ICAN/O00000002115
See notes to the financial statements

FRC/2023/PRO/DIR/003/100126 FRC/2019/ICAN/00000019990

13
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FAMILY HOMES FUNDS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

2022

At 1 January 2022
Capitdl grant infiow

Profit for the year
Dividend for the year 2021

At 31 December 2022

2023

At 1 January 2023
Capital grantinflow
Profit for the year

2022 Final dividend

At 31 December 2023

Share Capital
2000

1,000

Capital Grant

2000

78,500,000

7,000,000

85,500,000

85,500,000
3,500,000

Accumulated
Profit

000

2,428,872

1,450,229

(242,677)

3:636,424

3,636,424

3,663,253
(72,511)

Total Equity
%000

80,929,872
7,000,000
1,450,229
(242,677

89,137,424
3,500,000
3,662,253

(72,511)

See-ngtes to the financial statements.

89,000,000

14
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FAMILY HOMES FUNDS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR£NDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Operating activities
Prafit before tax

Adjustments to feconcile profit before-tax to-net cash flow:
Depreciation of praperty, plant-and equipment
Depreciation of Right of use Asset

Amertizatiori of intangibles _ _

Loss ondisposal of property, plant andequipment

Interest income .

L.oan receivables-
Finance.cost _
Impairment of loans {recavered)/expense.

Working capital'_adjustments:
Increase in inventories

Increase intrade and other receivables
Increase in trade and. other payables

interest received
income. taxes paid
Dividend paid

Net cashi flow used in operating activities

investing:activities

Purchase-of intangible assets

Purchase:of property, plant and equipment.

Sales proceed on disposal.of property. plant and’ equ:pment
Right-of-use asseis

L.ease rental:paid on-bonds

Nei recewed;’(payment) on. smklng funds-investment

Net-cash flow used in investing activitiés

Financing Activities

Capifal grant’
Deferredincome.grant.

Loan obtained.

Principal repdyment bn-bond .

Net cash flow from financing activities

Netincrease in.cash and ¢ash equivalents
Cash and cash equwa!ents at 1 Jdanuary

Cash andcash equivalentsat 31 December

See notes to the financial statements

15

Mote:

11
13
12

15
7.1

15

22.2

12

13
23.3

20.1

20.2

234

23,1

18

2023
N00D

91,434
59,572
40,375
8,856
(4,474,542)
1,417,668

3,736,357
(9,446)

4 929,636

(1,946,731)

(781,151
2,023,599

4,225,353

4,474,542

(500,037)
(120,?65}*

8,076,093

(12,0413
163,780
7,349

(B0,683)

(3,880,720)
695 957

24,3 9'-3-._.13_4:
30,595,711

54 988 845-

2022
000

2,049,627

91,455
36,594
26,237
B2l
(2,696,960}
(28,428,926)
2,011,103
402,563

(26, 502 185)

{2,063,198)
(1,181,798)
2.602,5865
(27,144,616)
2,696,960
{217,511
(1 18 912)

(24 784 145)

(94,978)
{(67,768) . ..

{70,899)
(1,270,139}
(4 46 _754)

100,646
30, 495 065

30 595 711



FAMILY HOMES FUNDS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

1.1

1.2

1.3

General information

Description of business

Family Homeés-Funds Limited was incofporated as a private limited ifability Company in Nigeria on 8- September
2016. The Company fs owned by Nigeria Sovereign’ Investment Authprity-and Ministry of Finance. Incorporated. The
Company is established to investinand to purchase, acquire, hold, develop, work and turn to.acceunt any land-(of
any tenure), landed property or real estate of any Kind whatsoever. (mcludlng proprietary rights) incjuding but. not
fimited to hames, housing estates, buildings, properties and all manner of real property in Nigeria and .related
mfrastructure and-equipment.

Shareholders'’ lnformatlon

Shareholder Number of Shares %
NSIA Property Company Limited 420,000 49
Ministry of Finance Incorporated 0'000 51

1,000, 000

Composition of-'finar_lcial statements

The financial stetéments are ‘drawn dp in Naire, the functional carrency of Family Homes Funds Limited, in
accordance with intérnational Financial Reporting Standards (fFRS) as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (JA5B), the provisions of the Financial Reporting-Councll of Nigeria (Amendmerit) Act, 2023, the
provision ofthe Companies and Allied and Matters-Act, CAP 20 and the Laws of the Federation of Nigerid 2004.as.
appliﬂc_ab_le;-acc_o_un,t_i'ng presentation. The financial statements comprise;

» Statement: of profit or loss and other comprehenswe mcome
» Statement of financial position ~

»Statement of: changes in.equity

+Statement of cash flows

» Notes fo the Fmanmal Staternents

Basis for preparation

The financial statenents of.the Company have been prepared inaccordance with international Finangial:
Standards:(IFRS) as issued: by the International Accounting Standards Boaird: (EASB) the provisiens.of-the’ Ftnanuai
Reportmg Counmi of:Nigeria. (Amendment) Act; 2023, the provision-of the Compames and Ailied and’ Matters Act,.
2020 as applicabie The flnancra{ statements have been prepared:on-a historical cost bams

“The fihancial statements are presented in Naira and all valugs:are tounded to the nearest thousand (N'OGO)
except when ofherwise indicated.

16



FAMILY HOMES FUNDS LIMITED

NOTES. TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

2..

a)

h)

Summary-of material accounting policies

The foflowing are the‘matertal actounting policies applied by the Campany in preparing its consolidated finahcial
statements: '

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabflities in-statement of financial position based on current/non-curient
classification. An asset is.current whery it.is:

¢  Expected.to be realised orinténded to-be:sold or-consumed.in-normal operatlng cycle

«  Held primarily for the purpose oftrading

- Expected to be reahsed within twelve months.after the reporting period,.or

L]

Cashar ¢ashi equivalentuniess restricted from being: exchanged or useg to settle a liability for at feast twelve
months, after the reportmg perigd.

All other assets are classified as.non-current,

A liabilityis current when:

o Itis expected to besséttied innormal operating cycle

« {tis held primarily for the purpose of trading

o [t isdueto be settied within twelve months.after the reporting. permd or

=  Thereis no:unconditional Fight to defer the settlement of the liability for-at least twelve months after the
reporting.period,

The Company-classifies:all other liabilities as nos-current.

Deferred tax assets.and Habilities are classified as non-current assets and liabifities.

Fair value measurément

Fair valug-is the price that would-be recejired to sell an asset or pald to transfer & liabiiity in.an or derly transaction.
between market participants at.the measurement date. The fair vaiue méasurement is based on the presumptlen
that'the transaction to seli:the:asset or transfer the liability takes place aither:

[ i_n_ the. pr-.m_cqpa_l .marke__t-for_.the-as_set-;or liability, or S

»  [ntheabsence.of a principal market, in the-mostﬁ.a'dvantageous..mar._ke't_f_o_r the asset or liabfiity . ...

= The principal or the most-advantageous: market must be accessible to'the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a Hability is medsured wsing the assumptlons that market participants wouid use when
pricing the asset or liability, assumirig that market participaiits act in their econemi¢ best Interest.

A fait valué measuremen|: of a non financial asset takes into account a market participant's. ablhty to gengrate:
economlc benefats b\; using the. assef'in ifs hlghest and: best use or by selling it to another-market partlcspant that-
would use the asset in its highest and best use. :

The Company uses’ valuation techniques that are appropriate | in the circumstances and for which sufflc;ent r.!ata are"
available to measure fair value, maxfmqsmq the use of relévant observable fhpité and mm:mismg the use.of
unchservable inputs. .

Al assets and liabiltties. for which faif valué.is measured.or disciosad in -th‘e-Finantfa_f-S'tatéﬁ_ffi_'ﬂ_ﬂfi_':a.r.é'zt-.ét“-‘.g:‘?'ﬁised o
within thefdir valte hiera’t_cjhi,_if-,- described as follows, based on the lowest level inpit that is matetialto the Té_if Val'u_e.

mzasurement.ds.g whole:

o Level L —Ouoted (unadjusted) markef pricesin active markets for identical assets or liabilities:

« Levet 2 - Valuation techriques for which thé fowest level input that is material to the fair valué measurement’
ts directly or indirectly observable

o Levef3 - Viluation techniquas far which the lowest level input that is material to the fair value measurement
is.unebservable:

For gssets and liabilities that aré recognised in the f:nanctai statements on a recurring basis, ‘the Company
determines whether trafsfers have ccdurred batween Levelsin the hierarchy by re-as 55e55ing cata_gor:satmn (based.
an the fawest level input that is material to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period, For the purpsse of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined-classes of assets and liabiiities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or tiability and the level of the fair-valug hierarchy.
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FAMILY HOMES FUNDS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

2.
c)

2.1

2.1

.contracts (or performance’obiligations) with-similar characteristics'since the Company reasonably-e ': B
-accounting result will not be miaterfally differénit from theresuitof applying the standard to the mdlvldual contracts.

Summary of material accounting policies-continued

Foreign Currency transactions

The Company's financial statements are presented in Nafra, which is also the Company's functional currency.
Transactions and. balances

Transactions in forelgn currencies are initiaily recorded by the Company's entities at their respective functional
currengy: spct rates at Lhe date the transaction first quaflfles for recognition.

Morietary assets and labilitigs denominated in fofeign curréncies are transialed at the functional currency spot

rates of exc’hanggat the-repoerting date. Differences arising on seftlément or translation of mongtary. items are.
recognised in profit-or loss.

Non-monetary itens that are-measured'in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates.at the ‘dates of the initiat transactions. Noh-monetary itéms measured at fair valué in a foréign-

‘cirrenicy. The gain or loss drising on translation-of noh-monetary items measured at fair value is treated:in ling’

with the recodgnition of the.gain or lgss on the thange in fait vaiue of the item (iie., trapsiatiod differerices.on items

‘whose fair value gain or loss {s recdgnised in OCkor profit or loss are also recogriised In OCI or profit or loss,

respectively),

'Revenue Recoghnition

Rev‘enue'-rfecogni{ion from-contract with customers
Revenue from cantract with customers

The Company is in the business of financing the acquisition, development, salé and manadement of commercial

~and-residential accommodation and retall space. These cohtracts are divided into- two major revenue streams

niagmely;
» Interest income and management fees earned fron lbans
» Sales of Gonds: < Sale:of property stock

Reveriue from contracts with customers is rezognised'when-contral of the goods or services.are transferred to the-

-custamer at an amount that reflects the. consideration to which the Company. expects fo be entitied i ‘gxéhange .

for those: goods or services. The Company has-genérally concluded that it is the principdl in s revenue

arFangements because it typically. controls the:goods-or sérvices hefore frapsferring them (o the:custemer.

Thedisclosures of material accounting judgements, éstimates and assumiptions relating to revenue fropnrcontracts
with ‘customers are provided.in Note 5. The Company. fias’ appiied-IFRS 15 pract;cai expedient to. portfolio Df

The Lompany has been abié 1o {ake & reasonabie approach to.determine the portfolics that wéuld he Fi 'presentahve

-of itstypes of custoihers. and business lines. ‘This has been usedto categorlse the different révenue stfeam detalled” '
Below,

Interest income and- Management fees earned: from loans.

The" revenue “from the interest and manaqement féés on. Ioans is recoqmzed ance mcome is earned at theend:of
each pefiod, generaify on the'loan facifity. The Company’ considers whetiher the promisesin the contract have been.
fuifliled to which a portion of the frapsaction price {i.e., lnterest and. management fees) needs to be:allocated. In
determlnmg the transaction price for the intarest income, the Company considers. the- effects of varsable
conmdefatnon. {he existence of material-financing components noncash consideration, and consideration payable’
to the customer (Eany),

Sale of goods - Sale of Property Stack

Revenue from Sale of Property Stock fs recognised at:the point in time when control of the asset is transferredto
ihe customer, generally an transfer of the propsrty. The Company:considers-whether thére are other promises in
the contract that are separate performance cbligations fo which a portion of the transaction price needs to be
allocated (e.g., warranties). (n determining the fransaction price for the sale of property, the Company considers
the-effects of variable consideraticn, the existence of material finahging-compeonents, noncash censideration, and
cansideration payable to the customer (f any).
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FAMILY HOMES.FUNDS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

2.
2.1

attributable to contract activity in general and.can be allocated to the contract. Costs that relate dlrect!y-to a

‘Summary of material accounting policies-continued

Construc_'t_io_n contracts - centinued

Material financing component

Using the practical expedient in IFRS 15, the Company does not adjust the promised amount of consideration for
the effects of a material financing component sirice it expects, at contract inception, that the period between the
transfer of the promised good or service t6 the customer and whien the customer pays for that good or sérvice will
be one year or less. As a conseduénce, the Company does not adjust any of the transaétion prices for-the time
value of money. '

Contract Balances

Trade Receivables

A receivablé represénts the Company's right to an amount of consideration that s unconditional (.e., only the
passagé of time-is reguired before 'pa'ym'en't-cf'the consideration is due),

Contract Ligbilities

YA-contract [iability is the obligation to.tra'nsfer.gqode-or--s"e'ervice's to a customer for which the Company has received
-cohsideration (or an amount of consideration is dué)-from the custorer. If a customer pays consideration before

the Company ‘transfers goods or sérvices 6 the customer, a contract Hablity is recognised:when the payment is-
made or the payinient is due{whicheveris earlier). Contractliabilities are recagnised as revenue when the Company.

perfarms under the contract.”

Contract revenue ~ Cantract revenue corresponds to the initial amoupt of revenue agreed in the contract and any

variations in contract. work, claims and incentive peyments to the extent that it is probabie that they will resultin

revepue; and thev are capabie of being rehablv measured

Contract costs — Contract costs include costs-thaf reiate directly to the specificcontract and cests that are-

epecmc contract comprise; -site Labour costs: (mcludmg site: superws:on). costs of matenais used in.const
costs:of-design, cost of deprec:atlon an plant and. machmery and technu:aI assmtance that is dlrectiy related;-to the:
contract

The company: contratts arg typicaliy negottated for the constmctaon of a smgie asset or a qreup of assets wh:ch

are closely. inferrelated or interdgpendent in ferms of -their desigri, tecthinology and ‘function. In -certain

circumstances, the percentage of completion method ds applied to the:separately |dent|f|able components of - @
single contract er to a group of contracks: together in order to. reflect the. substence of a. contract or-a-group. of
contracts.

Assets covered by a-single-¢ontract are -tre'ate"d"se parately when:
:a) The separateproposals havesbeen submafted foreach asset
v)} ach asset hae been subject to separate negot[atlon and the contractor-and customer have heen abte tc

'accept oF réje t“thaf partofthe cantract reiatmg 1o each &sset
¢) The costs ahd 'revenues of each asset can he :dentlfled

A group.of.cantracts are treated.as.a single construction contract when:
{a)} ‘the-group of contracts is negotiated asa single gackage;

) -the contracts are sa-closely. interrelated that they.are, in affect, part of a single project-with an-overall profit
margin,.

(c) thecentracts aré performed concurrently or in a‘tonfinuous Sequence

The three criteria must be:met before compination can oceur.
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FAMILY HOMES FUNDS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ~ Continued

2,

2.2

2.3

2.4

Summary bf material accounting policies-continued

Losses on contracts. are recogmsed in the pariod-in which they first become- fcreseeabre Contract lesses are
determined to be the amount by which-estimated dlrect and indirect casts of the contract exceed the estimated
totai revenues. that will be generated by the contract. During the pertod until the percentage of completxon
ca{culatlon is’ completed all contract costs are accumulated in contract work in progress, The costs of the.contract
attribitable to the stage of contract completlon are-transferred to cost-of sales. Where _the cosls incurred plu__s

recognised profits are greater than the sum-of the recoghised losses and progress billings, then this amount is

shown in debiors as amounts due from custormers for contract. work. Where the Surv of recognised losses and
progress billings.is greater, then this amount is showr in treditors as amounts due fo customers for contract work,

Borrowings: _
Borrowings are recognised initfally at fair value; net of transaction costs incurred. Bdrrowings are subseqently:
carried at amortised cost; any difference betweenthe proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redeniption vakue -

isrecognised in.the Profit or Loss:overthe period of the borrowings.using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the estabiishment of foan fagilities are recognised as-transaction costs of the loan tothe extent that
it is probable that some or-all of the facility will be drawn down. In this.cass, the fee is deferred: until the draw-down .
aceyrs. Toithe extent there is no evidence that Ttis probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the:

feeis capitailsed a5 a pre- payment for Ilquxdlty services. and amortised over the period of the facifity to which ft.
reiates.

Borrowing-costs:

‘Borrowing costs diractly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of gualifying assets, which are

assets thét_'neces_sarii_\,é take a substantial period of tirne to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are sulistantially ready for their infénded use-or sale.

fnvestrent income- earned on the temiporaty investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on

qualifying assets is deducted frem the borrowing Costs eligible for capitalization. All other borrowing costs are

recognized A profitior foss in‘the period. in which they are ingurred.

Property, plant and-equipment

Prcsperty plant: andeqmpment are stated-at hi-'»tc-ncai cost'l'ess accumul’ated ciepreciatron and'impairment if any.

Property, plant.and equipment inthe course of constructlon for prcduction supply or administrative purposes are:
carned at cost, less any recogmsed impa!rmentloss Cost tnciudes direct.costs; appropriate aEIocatlons ofm feils.

-and other overheads associated with the productioin of the assets; rofessaonai fees.and; for qualifylnq §5ats,

borrowmg costs capitalised ini accordance with the. Company s accountlng folicy. Such propertles are classified:to
the appropriate categorles of property. plant ‘ahd equapment when completed and ready for mtended usg.
Depreclatmn of these-assets, on the' same basis as other assefs, commences when' the. assefs dre’ ready for their
intended use.

Furniture and fittings 25%
Motof vehicles 5%
Equipment Z5%"

_Expenses on fepairs and maintenance for instance: day to day service.cost and an-going mamtenance cost are:

recognizeddn: profit or. loss, mmedlately Major vepairs and-overhau! costs are-capitalized if |t will resuit in future”
aconomic benefits. ﬁsgats held underfinance leases are deprecrated avertheir expected useful lives on the same

.basis as owned assets or; where shorter, over the term-of the refevant lease.

Lasses of gains-an.disposals of assets are récagnized in the statement af ‘profit or loss and other comprehenswe

_income under other- gains and Josses. Depreciation is recognised 50 as to write off the cost or valuation.of assets

(other than freeheld land and properties under construction) less their residual vaiues over their useful lives, usirg
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, reésidial values and depreciation methad.are reviewed at the
end of each repdriing pericd, with the effect 6f any changes in éstimate accountad for on a prospective Basis.
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FAMILY HOMES FUNDS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

2.

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.7

2.7.2

2.7.3

Summary of materiat accounting po[icie_s-confinued'

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future. econornic benefats arg
expected to arise from the continued.use of the asset. Any.gain.orjoss arising en the disposal or retirement of an:
item of property. plant and-equipment is determined-as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recagnised in profzt or loss.

Mon-cuitent assets held for sale

Non-current assets-and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be-recovered:
prmc:paliy through a sale transaction father thian through continuing use. This condition is regarded as et only
when the sale is highly probable and the non-current asset(or disposal group).is available for immediate sale in its
present condition, Manaqement miust be committed to thie salg, which should be expected to. qualify for recoghition-
as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification. Non-current assets (and disposal groups):
C_|E1$_Slfie__d as held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying-amournit and fair valug less costs to
seil,

Inventories
Inventaries are stated af the lower of cost and estimated net realisable value. Cost is based on standard costing.

that comprlses dlrect matertals and where apphcable, d:rect labour costs and those overheads that have been
incufred in bringing the inventories to their present location- and condition. Cost i is calcu!ated ysing the welghted

-average method. Net realisable vaiue represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion

and costs to be incurredin marketang, séfling and drstnbutlon

“Taxation

Taxgtion represents the sumof income tax payable and deferred tax.

income-and deferred tax-for theyear
Income and deferred tax are recogmsed in-profit.or loss, except when they relate to itams that are recognised’in
other cemprehenswe income:or directly In equity, in-which case, the incorme and deferred tax are, also recognised

in other comprehensive incame or directly.in equity respectively. Where ificome tax or: daferred tax arises. frorm the

|_n|t}.=,1__ accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the ‘accounting for the bissingss .
combination.

Income tax.

‘Taxable profit differs-fromy’ profit as reported in-the § income statemént because some items of income or expense.

are taxable ‘of deductible in différent years or may névet be faxable or- deduckible. The Company $ liabifity for
curienttax Ts calculated based-on Finance Act 2022 and tax ratés that have béen. enacted or substantweiy enacted'

by the end-of the reporting date,

Deferred faxation

Deferred tax Is recognised o temporary ditfersnces between the.carrying.amounts of assets and fiabilitissin the.

financial statements and the.corresponging fax basss used in the computation .of taxable profit, Déferred tax

liabilities are ‘generally recagrised for .ail taxabie ternporary differgntes. Deferred tax assets are genetally

recogmsed for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that 1t is- probable that faxabie profits.will be
avajiable against which those deductible temporary-differences can be utilised. Such- deferred tax assets and
iabilitles are not recognised if the temnporary dlfference arises from goodwill or from the iritiai recogmt:nn (other-
than in'a business: combmat:on) of other assets and ilabihnes i a-transaction that affects neither the taxable profif.
nor the accounting prafit,

Proviston for deferred taxation is made by the labillty method and cajculated at the current rate-of taxation on the
differences between the net book value of qualifying property, plant and gquipment and their corresponding tax
written dowh values. Also, consideration is given for provision for reticement Benefit which have hot béen paid in
thie year,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

2.

a8

2.9

Summary of material accounting pelicies-continued

Deferred tax is cajculated af thetax-rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liabllity is settled, or
the asset reafized based on the tax rates enacted by the.end of the reporting period.

Foreign currencies

All fransactions in foreigh currencies.are recorded in Naifa at the rate of exchande ruling at the dates of the:
transactions. Monetary items are cofiverted to Naira at the rates of exchange ruling -at the reporting date. All
differerices arising there from are taken to-the profit or loss.

Non‘mongtary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at'the rates’
prevailing at the date when tha fair value was determingd. Noh4mone'_'ta'ry itemns that are measured in, terms of -
historical cost in a foreign curréncy are not retranstated.

Dividends

Divi_den_d_s- on.ordingry shares te shareholders are recognized in equity in the period il which-they are paid or, if
earlier, approved by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

2.10 Retirement benefits

2.10.1 Short-term employes benefits

“The cost of short-term empioyee benefils, (those payable within 12 manths afler the service is rendered, such as

pald vacatidn-and sick leave, bonuses and nofy-mionetary benefits such as miedical care), are recognised in the
periad-in which the service'is renderéed and are nof discounted.

“The axpected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as thé emplovees repder seevices that

fricrease theirentitlement or,.inthe case of non-accumulatiig absencas, when thé absence occurs.

The expected cgst-of profit: sharing:and: bonus paymeiits is recoghised as an expense when there i§ a legal. or

const_rugl_iva-_qbfigati'qn to rake such payments:as a result of past performance.

2.10.2 Defined contribution plan

Payments to defined contrlbutlan retlrement benefit plans are recognized as an expense - when employees haVe.
rendered: Serwce entltllng them to.the contrlbuticns Retlrement benefit plans for members of staff are sfructuredi
through 8 deftned contnbutory pensmn scherne which is, independent of the Company’s-finances.and s managed_
by Pension Fund Administrators. The schemg, whichis funded by contrabutlons fromboth: employer andemployees

.ateach 10% and 8% respectwely, is cansistent with the Pension Reform Act 2014

2.10.3 Défined bénefit pfan

2.11

For defingd retirement benefit-plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit:Credit:
Method; with actiarial valuations bemg carrisd out periodically 56-that a. pravision for the present value of the

estimated cost for liabilities due at the reporting date in respect of employees’ terminal gratufties based on

-qualifying years of service and applicable emolumients &5 par opefating collective agreement i§ being madein the.

statement of financiaf pasition.

Financial instruments

'Flnancml assets and- financial liakilities arg racognized when the Company becomes a party to-the contractual

prowsmns of the instrument. Financial assets angd ftnanmal IIabIIitFES areinitially measured-at falr va[ue Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition orissue of financial assels and financial lfabitities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profil.or foss) are ddded to.or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable 1o the acduisition &f financial assets or financial lighilities at fair value through profit or foss are
recadhized immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
2. Summary of material accounting pelicies-continued
2.11.1 Financial assets

Purchases .or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require: delwery of assets W|thm the time frame:
established by reguiation or convenlion in the marketplace

2.11.1.1 Amortized cost and eifective interest method

The effactive inferest method-is 3 method of calculating the amortised cost of a débtinstrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts.(ncluding alf fees.and poirnts paid-or received thatforim an integral part of the gffectiveinterest:
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through: the-gxpected ife of the debt Instrummient, or,

where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amaunt oninitial recoghition,

Incame is recognised.on an effectiveinterest basis for debt i’nstrumenfs measured subsequently at amortised-cost.
Interest income is recognised in profit of loss and is in¢luded in the Minvestment income® line item.

2.11,1.2 Classification of financial assets

The Company's ﬂnanua! assets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets ‘at fair value:
through profit or foss' (FVTPLY, 'held-to-maturity’ investments, 'available-for-salg* (AFS) financial assets and ‘loans
and receivables. All recognised financial assets are, subSEquentIy measured in their entirety at either amortised
cost or fair vaiue depending on the classification of the financial assets.

2.11.1.2.1 Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinablé payments that areriot quoted
in.an active market. Loans and: feceivables are measured at-amortized cost using the'éffective: interest method,
less any’ impalrmeni [nterest income is ‘recognized by-applying the effectwe interest rate, except for short-term
receivables when the effect of d:scountang is immaterial. The assets in this cafegcry include trade and ofher
receivables, contract 1et:ewab{es and retentions, cash-and cash equivalenis.

2.11.1.2.2 Trade-and other receivables

rece:vables and measured at amort;zed cost usmg the effectwe mterest rate method The provrsxon for 1mp "rment.
of trade and other receivables is establlshed wheh there is ob;ectwe evidence that the Company will riot be ablé to-
colléct all amounts dué in-accordance’ With the original tefms. of the credit given and includes an. assessient:of |
~recoverability based. on:historical trend analyses and events that exist: at reportmg date. The amount af the
provision is the difference between the carrying value and the present valte of eshmated future cash fiows :
discountedat the effective interest.rate complted at initial: recognition. '

2.11.1.2.3 Contract receivables and retentions

Coptract receivables and retentions are initially recognised at fair valug, and are subsequently classified as loans
and receivables and measured at-amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Contract receivabigs.arid
retentions comprise amounts.due inrespect of certified or approved certificates by the client or consultant at-the.
reporting date for which payment has not been. received, and amounts held as retentmns on certified certificates
at the reporting date. Coniract receivables are stated after deduction of specific allowance for any.debt considered
doubtfidl of coilection, The allowance for badand doubtful debts is based on the cshmated 1rreccverab{e amaunt
which is determined based on the ageiriq of the recelvable balance and historical experience.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
2. Summary of material accounting policies-continued:
2.11.1.2.4 Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits and-other short term highly tiquid-investments
that are readily convertitile to.a known.amount of cash and are subject to.an inmaterial risk of changes in value..
Bank overdrafts are not offset against positive bank balances unfess a legally enforceable right of offset exists, and
there is an intention to setflethe overdraft and réalise the net cash -sim’u__[t_é'r}eo{_)_sly; or to settle-on anet basis. All
short-term cash investrents are invested with major financial instifutions in order to manage credit risk.

2.11.1.2.5 Foreign-exchange gains and losses

The fair value of {lnancial assets denominated in a foreign-currency is determined. in that foreign currency and
translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period. The' foreign-exchange component forms part-of its
fair value gain or loss, Therefore, for financial assels that are classified as at FVTPL, theforeign.exchange
cemponent is recognized in. profit.or loss; and for foreign.currency denominated debf instruments measyred-at.
amortized costat the end of each reporting pericd, the foreign exchange gains and "Jos'ses-ar_e-:_c_i_eterr_nin_ed:'b_ased
on.the amortized cost of the financial assets and are recognized in the ‘other gains and losses’ ling item-in the-
‘statement of profit or Joss.

2:11.1.2.6 Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets that are measured at amortised cost are assessed for impairment at the end of each reporting
peficd, Fananual assets are considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events-that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial assets, the estimated future cash fiows of
ihe asset have been affected,

Obje..twe evidence of |mpalrment couidinciude:
matertal financiai difficuity of the issuay or caunterparty; or
breach of cantract, such as'a.default or delinquency ininterest.or principal payments; or
it.is becommg pmbabEe thal Ihie borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re- orgamsatlon, or
the disappearanice-of an, actwe market for tHat financial asset becauseof financial difficulties, -

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade recelvables, assets that are assessed not to be:impaired.
mdmdually are, in. addrtmn assessed for smpairment an a-collective basis. Objectwe evidence of. |mpa|rment fora.
portfolio- of recewables could mciude the Company's past experience of cailect;nq payments, an’ increase in the
aumber- of delaved payments in the portfollo past the average- cred|t permd as weii as- observable changes i
national or local geconomic condlt:ans that correlafe with default on receivables.

The .amount of the impairment loss recognised is the.difference between the assets: Carrylng amo d the:
present value of estimated futdre-cash flows reftecting the. amount of collateral and: gtjaranteef dlscounted at the
fmancrat asset'sorigingl effective-interest rate,

Thecarrying-amotunt of the financial asset is redred by the impairment loss directly. for all financial assets with:
the exceptlion of trade receivables, where the carrying amaunt is rediced through the usé of an allowance aceount.
Wher & trade receivable is considered unicollectibie, it Is written off against the allewanceaccolnt.

Subsequent recoverie;-o? amounts previously written off are cre_dited _a'g_ainst.the'a'ﬂowance actount. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit.or loss.

If, in & subsequent period, the amountof the impairment loss'decreases and the decrease can be related. objectwe!y
to an event occumng after the !mpalrment was. recogntsed the previousiy- recagmsed 1mpalrment loss:is. reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment s
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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Summary of material accounti'ng-polici_es-cont-inu_ed

2.11.1.2.7 De-recognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to. the cash flows from the asset.
gxpire, or when it transfers the. ﬂnanmai assetand substantlaliy all the risks.and rewardsof ownership of the asset
to-another entity. If the GCompany néither transfers norretains substantrally all the risks. and rewardsof ownershlp
and continues to control the transferred asset; the Company. recognises its retained interest in the asset.and an’
associated Hability for amounts it imay have to pay. If the Company retains substantaally all the risks and rewards:
of ownership of & transferred financial asset, the Company continugs ‘fo recogmse the-financial-agsét and also:
recognises a collateralised borrow:nq for the proceeds received.

on _de‘recognition“of'.a -financial_ass_ef_ measiired at amortised cost, the difference between the-asset's. carrying
amount and the sum of the'consideration received and recéivable is recagnisad in-profit or loss;

2.11.2 Financial liabllities

Financial fiabilities subsequently measured at amortized-cost.

The carrying amounts of financial Iiablllties that are subsequently meastred at amortised cost are détermined
based on the effectwe interest method mterest expense that {s not cap:tailsed as part of costs of an-asset is,
included in-the 'fmance costs' iine item.

The effective interest method is a method of calcuiating the amortised cost of a financial liabifity and of aflocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective lnlerest rateis the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (inchuding ail Tees and paints paid or received thal form an integral part of the eifective.
interest rate, transaction coésts and other premiums-or discounts) through the expecied life of the’ fm_anc_raI lahility,
or {(where appropriate} a:shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial tecognition.

2,11.2.1 Foreign'exchange gains and Iosses

For financial liabilities that are'denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortlsed cost at theend
of eachreporting’ period, theforgign-exchange gainis and losses are determined based on the amortised costef the” -
instruments: and are recogmsed inthe ! ‘other gains and'losses’ “lirie item In the statermnent of profitor 188s and other
comprehenswe income, Thefair value of fmancral liabilities denominated in aforeign.currency is deterrnmed in that_
foreign cifrency. and translated at'the spot rateat the end of the reperting period.

2.11:2.2 De-recagnition: of financial liahilities

2.12

‘the consideration. paid-and. payabie mcludmg any rion: cash assets Harsfareed or IIabliitles assumed

The-Company dérecognises financial liabilities whan; and antv when, the Company's: pbligations are-discharged; -
cangefled or they exgire. The difference between {he’ carrymg amount of the fmancxal i;abx!aty derecogmsed and"

ir-profit or loss.,

Pravisions.

Provisions are recognized when the Cémpany has a present obligation, whether-legal or constrisctive, @s.a result:
ofa past event for which it is probabie tiat-an outflow of resources embodying econoimic benefits will'be requlrad-
to settle the obligataon and a reliable estimate can be made of the amaunt of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of. the consideratior; required fo sett[e the prasent
obligation at the end af the reporling period, faking into. account the risks-and uncertainties surrounding the.
obiigatior. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the:present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present Value-of those cash flows fwherethe effect of the time value of money is material},
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2.13

2:14

Summary of material accounting policies=continued

Provisions - Continued.

When some or all of the ecanomic benefits reqmred to settie a prowsron are expected to be recovered from a third.
party, a recewable is recognised as an asset if it. is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and. the-
amount of the recewable €an be measured reliably

A restructuring provision is recognised ‘when the Company has developed z defailed formal plaf. for the
restructuring and has raised a-valid expectation in those affected that it will carry dut.the restructuring by starting
to implement the plan or annguncing its main features to-those affécted by it.

The measurement of a restructuring provision includes.onty the directexpenditures arising fromthe restructuring,
which are those ameunts that are both necessarily entailed bv the restructuring and not associated with the
ongaing: a_ch.vi_tles of- _the entity.

Impairment of tangible assets

At the.end of each reporting periad, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangfble- assets to determine:
whether there i5-any indicatioh that, those assets have suﬁered an impajirment’ Ioss if:any such mdmatmn exists,
the recoverable amoum ‘of the'asset is estlmated in order to determ:ne the extent of the impairment: joss (if- any)
Whére it is not. possmle 1o estimate the recoverabie amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the-
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset beiongs. Where & reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can he identified, corporate assets are also al flocated to Indl\rid_ual cash-generatlng units, or
otherwise they-are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis.can be identifiad.

Where an impairment |bss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the assét (or-a cash-generating unit) is.

ingreased to the revised esfifhate of its recoverabie amount, but so that the Intreased carrying amiount does not

exceed the carryirig .amount-that would - have been. determined: had.no impairment loss. beerrecognized:-for the-
asset (or the cash—generaimg unit).in prigr years: A reversal of an |mpalrment loss is recogmze mediately in
profit or foss, unless-the relevantasset s carried at arevaluedamount, in which case the reversa! of the-impairment

(0555 treated asa revaiuatten increase. '

tmpairment of non-financial assets

Impazrment ex:sts when the carrwng value of an asset or cash’ generatmg unit exceeds its recoverabre amount ;
which 'is ‘the higher ofits faif vajteiess costs of dlsposal and its value in use; The fair value {58 costsof
calcuiatron is based on avaliable data from hmdmg sa!es transactaons conducted at arm s Iength for
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...... ation ;s based_ .
on & DCF modei The recoverabie amount iS senmtwe te the dlscount rate used for the DCF‘ modei as WE” as ‘the
expected. future cash-inflows and the.growth rate Used for extrapolation putpases.

The: company -assésses assets.or group of assets forimpair eht whenever events-or changes ih circumstances:

indicate that the carrying. amount of an asset may-not be recoverable: if any such indication‘of: rmpalrment exists;

the Company makes an estimate of the asset's recoverable amount. Individual assets até grouped for i piairmert
assessment purposes at the lowest level (Cash generating unit) at which there-aré identifiable:cash-fiaws that-are
largely independent of the cash flows of other group of assets. An assel’s recoverabie:amount:is the higher:of its
fair value less costs of dasposal andits vaiue inuse. Where the-carpying amount. cf an-asset exceadsits recoverable:
amount, the. asset i Isconsidered- Empalred and is wrttten down io-its recoverable-amount. In assessing value i use, .
the-estimated future cash flows are ddjusted for the risks specific to the asset and are: dlscounted to thezr present
value using a pre-tax duscount rate that reflects cutrent market assessments of the time value of money.
impairment losses are recogn:sed in profit or (oss,

Ampairment losses recognised in prior periods can 'bé reversed up te the original carrying amount, had the

impairment loss not been rgcognised, Such reversal is recagnised in profit or foss. After such a reversal, the
depreciation charge is adjusted infuture pericds {o allocate the asset's revised carrying amount; léss'any residual
value, on asystematic basis over its remaining useful life:
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Summary of material accounting policies-confinued

Leases
Paoliey prior to 1 January 2022

(a) The company-is & lessee

(i Operatlng lease

Leases in'which.a material portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by another party, the Iessor
are. classified as operating ieases. Payments mcluqu prepayments made under nperatmg ledses {pet of any
incentives received from the Jessor) are. charged to-the income statement on.a stralght line basis over the penod
of the ledse. When an.operating fease is tarminated before the leasé period has expired, ahy payment reqiired ta
be made to'the {essor by way of penalty is recogniséd as an expense in the pefiod in‘which términation takes place.

(iiy Finarce lease _ _

Leases of assats where the. Company has .-su_bstantia'_lly-all_'_the risks and rewards of ownership are classified a5
finance leases. Finance leases are récognised at the iease™ commencement at the lower of the fair value of the
leased property and.the present value of the minimum lease payments..Each lease payment is allocated between
the liability and- finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are inc! uded in‘current and noncurrent borrowings. The
interest element of the finance cost'is treated as borrowing costs (see Note 2.18) and expcnaed;’capltauaed pver
the Iease period soas fo predyce a constant: perlodic rate of interest on the remaining.balance of the Iiab|lqty for
each period

investment properties recogpised under financeieases are carried at their fair value.
(b} The companyis a lessor
{i) Operating lease

Policy from 1 January 2022

The. Company assésses-at contract inception whether & centract’is, or-contains, 4 lease. That is, if the tontract

-Copveys. the rightto'control the use of an identified asset-for'd period of time in exchange for eonsideration.

The Comipany.applies a single recognition and measuremerit approach for its lease.

Company as a lessee
The Company applies a single recognition and measurement-approach for all leases. The company-alsé applied tha

“available practical expedients wherein it;
> -Applied the short<term ieases exempiions o leases w:th legse-term that ends: within 12 months of the date -of

initial, apphcatlon
> Excluded the |n|tlal direct costs from the:measurement of the right-of-use.asset at the date of initial application,

. Right-of-use assefs-

The Company récognises right-of-use asset at the-commencement date of the fease (ie,, the date the underlqu_-:_
asset is available fof use). Right-of-use assets are measured .at cost, Jless:any accumu!ated deprem ' :
|mpa|rment losses. Theé.costof nght 0f~u&e asset mciudes the mitlai direct’ costs mcurred and fease payments:n ade'

at or Before the commencément datd fess.any: lease intentives received. nght G-lise assats are deprecnated ona s

straight-ling basis over the shorter of the lease térm and the estimated useful fives of the asset.

- Depreciation.is cajculated on & straight-fine basis'over the estimated useful{ife of the asset; as shown below:

Residential buildings. 2 Years
Plant and machines, 2 Yaars

(f ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at.the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the-
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the-estimated useful life of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are aiso subject ta impairment. Refer to the. accounting policies on Impalrment of non-
financial assets.
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(@)

i}

D

“The amendments to JAS 1 and IFRS Practicé Statement.2 Making Materiality Judgements provide. guidance and

Summary of mé‘ter’ial accounting poficies-continued
Leases-Continued
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipmentdi.e., those ledses that Rave'a lease-term of 12 months of lass from the commencément date-and do hot

«contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exeription to leases. of .office

eguipment that are considered to'bé low value. Lease payments.on-short-terileases and {eases of low value:assets
are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis-over the igase term.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

New and-amended standards and interpretations

Thenature and effect of-the changes as a result of the adoption of these new accounting standards are described.
below. The amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in 2023, but do not have an impact on the:
financial statements of the Company. The Company has not. early adopted any standard, mterpretatlon ar
amendment that have been issugd but are not yet effective,

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts is a .comprehensive new accountmg standard for insurance contracts covering
recognition.and measurement, presentation and disclosure. IFRS 17 rep[aces IFRS 4 {nsurance Contracts IFRS17
applies to all types of insurance contracts (i.e., life, nan-life, direct i fnsurance and re- msurance), regardiess of the
type of entities that issue them as well as to certain guarantees ang financial instruments with discretionary

participation features; a few.'Scope exceptions will apply. The overalt objective of IFRS 17 is. to pravide a
-comprehensive accounting mode! forinsuranice contracts that is more usefil and consistent for insurers, covaring
all relevant accounting aspects. IFRS 17 is based on a general model, suppiemented by

> A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variabie fee approach)

+ -A-simpfified-approach (the premium allocation agproach). mainly for short:duration contracts

The new standard had to impact on the Company's financial statements.

‘Definition of Accounting Estimates -/Amendments to IAS 8

"The. amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction. hetween changes in accounting estimates, changestin accountmg
policies: and the correction of errors. They also clarify how- ent;tles use measurement techriigues; and :nputs to
deveiop accaunting. esttmaies

The.amendmerits had no impact.on the Company’s financial statements,

Bisclosuge-of Accounting Poficies - Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2.

examples to hielp entities apply. matetlaltty judgements {o accountmg po[ucy disclosures. The amendi

‘hefp entifies provide accountmg policy disciosures that are more usefuf by replacing the reqmrement.for entlties

to'distlose their ‘sighificant’ actounting policies with a.requirement to disclose thelr ‘material accountmg pollues

and adding quidanice on how entities.apply the eancept of materiafity i making decisions about accountmg policy’

disclosurés,

The amendments have had an impact on the Company's disclosuris of actounting policies, but not.on the
measurament, recognition or presentation of any items in the Company's financial stataments,
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Deferred Tax related to Assets and lgiabiiit'ies arising from a Single Transaction - Amendments to
(AS 12

The.amendmenits to [AS 12 Income Tax narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception, so that i’f'nq'io}nger

-applies to transactions that giverise to equal taxable and deductible temporary-differences such as leases.and:

decommissioning iiabilities.

The-amendments had no impact on the Company's-financial statements,

Intefnational Tax Reform—=Piliar Two Mode( Rules - Amendments o JAS 12

The ainendments fo 1AS 12 have been introdiiced in response to the OECD's BERS Pillar Two rutes and include:
+ A mandatory temporary exceplion to the recognition and.disclosure of deferred taxes arising from the
irisdictional implementation of the Pillar Two model rules; and

» Disclosure réquirermnents for affected entitigs fo help users of thé financial statéments hetter,

understand-an entity's exposure £o.Pillar Two incame taxes arising from that legislation, particularly before its.
effective date, '

The mandatory tempofary eXception - the use of which is required: to.be disclosed - applies immediately, Tha-
remaining disclosure requirements.apply for annuai reporting perjods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, but
not for any interim periods ending on or before 31 December 2023.

Mew and amended standards and interpretations.issued but not effective

Amendments to IFRS 16; Lease Lizbifity in a Sale and Leaseback

i September 2022 the |ASB. issuéd:airiendments to IFRS 16-to:specify the requirements-that & seller-essee uses
in: measuring the lease liability: arlsing. ih a sale. and leaseback transaction, to enisure-the seiler-lessee dogs not-

recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains.

The amendmentsare effectwe forannual reporting periods-beginning on or after 1 January: 2024 and must applted_
retraspectlveiy to sale and leaseback transaclions. entered’into afler the date of: initial appitcat:on of lFRS 16.
Earlier-appication is permitted, and that fact must be discipsed.

'The_ame___ndments are nof expected fo have a material impact on the Company's financial statements,.

Amendrrients to 1AS 1: Classification of Liabilities as.Current-or Non-current

in. January 2020 anid Cctober. 2022 the IASE issued. amendments to paragraphs 69 to: 76 of IAS 1t specxfy the
requirements for classﬁylng Ilablllties 8% current or RO~ current The amendments clarify:

-+ Whiat is. meant by aright to defer settiement?

»That:a right to defer must existat the énd of the reporting perigd.

~That classification is naffected: by the fikelihdod that an-entity will éxercisé it$ déferral right.

»That on!y if-an-embedded derivative in a convertible fiabilityis itself an- equ;ty instrument would the terms.

of a liahility does not impact its tlassification,

in addition, a requirement has been introduced to require disclosure when a llability arising frefn 8 lean agreement
is classified.as non-currént and the entity's right to- defer settiement is contingent en compliance with. future.
covenants withintwelve months:

The:amendments-are effectwe for annual reperting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and must be
applied retrospectwely Tha Ccmpany Is eurrently assessing the impact the amendments:will have on current
practice- and whether existing loan- agreements may require renegetiation,
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Suppl’ier-'l-"inance Arrangernents - Amendmenis to1AS 7 and IFRS 7

In May 2023, the IASB issued amendments.to |AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and {FRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures to clarify the characteristics of supplier finance arrgngements-and require additional disclosureof sugh
arrangements, The disclosure requirementsin the amendments are intended to-assist users.of financial statements
in.understanding the effects of supplier finarce: arrangements on an entity's llabihtles cash flows and ‘exposure to
liquidity risk.

The-amendments will be effective for annual reporting perieds beginning on or after 1 January 20’_24_.__ Early
adoption:is permitted but will neéd to ba disclosed.

Theamendments are not-expected to have a matefial impact on the Compary's-financial statements.

Matertal accouriting judgements; estimates and assumptions

Judgments

When the Company determines that a performance obligation is satisfied over tirte, the standard requirement:is
to select-a single revenue redognition method for the relevant performiance obligation to measure progress.

The Cc:mpau".yr uses the output method whlch recognisesrevenue ori-the basis of direct méasureéments.of the value
to the customers of the building or civit work transterred o date relative fo the remaining goods oF sgrvices.

promised in‘to, Output methods include survey of performance completed to date, apprajsals. of results-dchiaved,
milestones reached and fime elapsed and units produced or units delivered.

Investment properties

The Company uses external experts in valuing its investment properties: For an analysis of the properties valugd
using each of these refer to Note 14,

For external vallations, professional valuers' make-use of the- following key assumptions:

1, Thatihe interests held by fhe company as evidenced by title deeds are good and marketable;

2. Thatthe properties dre free from-orerous restrictions and charges;
3. Thatthe propert:ES ate netadyersdly affected by orsubject to compulsory dcquisition; road widehing; planmng'

restfictions or'urban renewal schemes B
4. Tnat the properties are free from structural, infestation or concealed defect conditions and show fio s;gn of
impairiment.

Estimates and assumptions continued,

Useful fives for property, plant & equipment

The EStImatlon of the useful lives of assets.is based on management's judgment. Any matemal ad;ustment to'the:
eshmated useful lives of property,. plant and equipment will have an impact orithe carrying value, See Note 11 for
furthier details.

“Financial Instruments

Prowsmn for expected credit fosses of trade receivables

“Thé Company uses a provision. matrix to calcllate EGLs for trade recewables The prowsmn rates are based on_':'
days.past due for groupings of various customer ségments that have similar loss pattems {i.e., by praduct.type,
and customer type),

The provision matrix is inttially: based on the' Company’s historical observed default rates. The Campany. will

_callbrate the matrlx toradjust the historical credit loss.experience with forward-looking information. For litstance,

{f forecasteconomic tonditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are-expected to deteriorate over the next year.which
can lead to-anincreased number of defaults in the manufacturmg sector, the Ristorical default rates arg adjusted,

.At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changgs in the forward- iecking

estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and
EClLsis'a matertal estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensifive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic

conditions.
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6.1

Financial Instruments - Continued

The Company’s historicakcredit lass experience and forecast of economic conditions may also nof be representative.
of customer’s actual default in the futtre, The-information about the ECLs on the Company's trade receivables is.
disclosed in Note'5 and 15,

Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulatmns. changes in tax laws,. and the
amourit and timing of future taxgble income. Given the wide contract relatianships and the longsterm Fature and
complexity-of existing contractual agreements, differences arising between the actual resufts and the assumptlons-'
madg, of futuré ¢hdnges to such assumptions, could necessitate. fiture: adjustments £o tax incomg:and expensa.
already recorded. The company establiskies provisiofis, ‘hased on réasonable estimates, for possible conséquenices
of audits by the tax authorities of the réspective bodies. The amount of such provisions is-based on variols factors,.
such ds experience of previous tax-audits and differing interpretations of tax requlations by the taxable entity and
the responsible tax authority.

Review of ¢the useful ives of tangible assets

Ancthermajor assumption made by directors in‘the preparation of the fmanczal statements is the determination of -
the: useful life of the plant property and- equapment These estimates are made from ‘judgments based-on past
experience with similar assets; technolngtga_i obsalescence and declining resadual vatues,

Revenuefrom contracts with customers 2023 20232
Disaggregated revenue information N'OOC N'O00
Total revenue from contiacts with customers 6,351,492 5,104,077

Geographicat markets
Within Nigeria 6,351,492 5,108,077
Qutside Nigeria - -

Total revenue from contracts with customers g, 351 402 5,104,077

Revenue from contracts with customers - Continued

N | 2023 2022
The'revenue of the company was earned from the following streams: N'O0O N'COO
[nterest income garhed from loans to state qoverﬁments and others* 5,905,900 4,765,325

Loai management fees® 445.592' 338,752

Total reévente from contractswith custormiers 5, 104 O??

*During the - yéar, the Company gave oul housing develdpment loans. to: .NI!"LE! (93 (2022 10) States '
Government and three (3) private firms in Nigerfa. Theréfore, the interest and managcment fees earned on
the loans are treated as revenue.

*+ Management made fee income from loan disbursed-to states and private _devemp_ers during the yeaar.

2023 2022

_ K000 N0
Finance income

interest from fixed deposit 4,328,524 2,609,905

Interest from investment in sinking fund: 146 018_ ' 87 455

4 4?4 542 2 696 960
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6.2  Other income:
interest from staff Moftgage loan
Penalties-and dther fee
Duadiligence
Reversal on impairment of trade receivable.
Profit from Sales of houses***

*4+4profit from sales-of Housing unit is made up of the income derived from the sales of housing inventory in the

Family Homes Funds. Legacy Estates.

7. Operating and administrative expenses

Amortization

Audit fee

Bank charges

Depreciation {Note 8b)

Directors' emoluments (Note 8a.3)
Donations

Loan charges*

‘Luss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
‘Loss on sales of house

Impairment provision on loans
Ihsurance

Marketingexpenses

Office supplles

Office running expenses

Ofher expenses:

Parstnnel expgnse (Note 8a.3)
Printing and stationaries
Professional and consulfancy Fees**
‘Rent

Travel expenses

Vehiicle expenses.

2023
N'000-

40,375

15,000. .

857
151,006
162,409
46,003
144,898
8,856
4,572

12,444,
2,271
26,933

87,651
479,775
36,353
1,483,243
64,258
190,379
30,943

2022
000

2,470
19,000

2022
WQeo

26,237
15,000
901
128,049
126,182
659,926
652,377
402,563

| 6,156

7 ,‘9"1 1
15,276

. 39.477
207,373
632,577
28,078
1,316,300
33,643
99,352
15,380
3,828,880

*Loan charges represent management fées, trustée feds and other annual; biannual quarterly charges.on'the

Sukuk Bond.

*“Professional and-Consultancy fees include all project manageirient expenses, media, and lagal fee.

F.oLl Finance cost

Lease reéptal expenses on Sukuk bonds (Note 23.3}

32

2023
000
3,736,357

3,736,357

2022
0060
2,011,103
2,011,103
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FAMILY HOMES FUNDS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

Staff costs and employee: numbers

The number-of employees of the Company cther than. directors who earned - more than N500 Q00 in the year;

H500000 - 1,000,000

R1,100,000 - N2,000,000

®2,100,000 -  N3,000,000

N3,100,000 - ¥4,000,000
N4.100,000 -  Above

The average numbar of employees in the Company's
employment during the vear

Staff cost relating to.the above
Wages and salaries
Defined benefit pension schemes

Directors’ emolument

Depremation
Depreciation of property, plant and eqmpment
Depreciation of Right of use asset

Proflt before taxation

Profit: before taxation has been arrived at after charging:

Amp‘_r_t_izatmn

Auditers' remuneration

Bepreciation of property, plant and equipment-
Depreciation of Right c:f use asset

Perscnnei cost

Dlrer.lors emolumeni

Taxation
Income tax récognized in profitor oss
Current tax
Feaucation tax
Deferred tax charge for thé vear
Police irust fund fevy

Tatal income tax expense recagnized in the current year

33

) 2023
Number

2023
N'000

454,295

25,480
4?9,1?75
162,409

981,310

162,409

376;119
46,274
(26,362)
7

2022
Numbet’

5
4

32

2022
w000

597,851
'34- 726.

632 577'
126,182

758 759' '
126 182

573,304
52,716
(26,727
105

599,398



FAMILY HOMES FUNDS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

10,2 Amount recognized in the statemient of financial position

Current tax ffabilities
At 1 January
Mintmum tax
Education tax

Commpany income tax

Falice trust fund fevy

AL 31 Decerber
Paymients-during the year

10.3 Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Profit before. tax

income tax at-30%:
Non-deductible expenses
income exempts from tax
Effect of capital aliowance
Effect of minimum tax
Effect of education fax levy
Effect. of police trust fund
Deferred tax effect

Effective tax rate

2023
000
655,652
46,274
376,119
77

1,217,809

- 78514

(86,620)

46,274
_ 77
(26,362)

2022
000

247,104

52,716
573,304
105
873,229
(217,577
655,552

614,888
203,560,
{185,818)
(59,325)

52,716
105
727)

(26

10.4 Provision far Education Tax has been computed at the rate of 3% (2022 2.5%) on:the assessable profit i

accordance with Finance Act, 2023

10:5 Deferred Taxation

Déferred taxation has been coriputed-using the liability method resuiting into deferred tax asset 0£N22,760,000

(2022; liability ©N3,602,000).

Beferred taxation asset/ (tiabllity)

At T January
Charge for the year

At 31 December

34

2023
N'00Q

(3,602)
26,362




FAMILY HOMES FUNDS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FENANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

11 T Property, plant and equipment | |
Office
Furniture & _ )
Motor Vehicles fittings. Equipment Total
Cost MN'000 8000 00 N'oCo
At 1 January 2022 219,814 47.812 57,915 325:541
Additions - 27,126, 40,642 67,768
Disposal (57.,2'235)- - (771} {57,896)
At 31 December 2022 162,589 74,938 97,786 335,313
At 1 January 2023 162,589, 74,938 97,786 335,313
Additions . 139,696 20,584 3,499 163,780
Dispasal (42,893} (550) (1 080) j (44,523) 1
At 31 December 2023 259,393 94,'9_'.’-2 100 205 -454 570'
Depreciation and Impairment |
At 1 January 2022 68,068 24,234 27,235 119,537
~Charge fof year 54,679 14,780 21,796 91,455 |.
' ' (51,264) (611) (51,875)
At 31 December 2022 71,683 39,014 48,420 159,117
Al 1 January 2023 71,683 39,014 48,420 189,117
Chardge for the year 54,499 16,593 20,342 91,435 |
Disposal (27,701) £120) {495) (28,317)
At31 December 2023 o 98,480 55 487 68,266 222,235 |
Net .book value _
At 31 December 2023 160,912 39,485 31,939 232,335
At 31 December 2022 90,906 35.924 42,366 176,196
There-are no restrictions o title 1o the items of property, plant and equipment. No Property, Plant and
Equnpment was pledged as security for any liability as &€ 31 December 2023 (20221 Ni)). However, there was.no-
revaluation en the Property, _piant and equipment during'the year.
12. Intangiblé assets - Software N'QO0
-Cost
At'L January 2023 182,730
Additions . .?2.'0_.4_1.
At 31 December 2023 264,771
Accumulated Amortization
At 1 Janyary 2023 40,008
Charge for the year 40 375
As at 31 December 2023 80,383
Net hook-valtie 174,388
Al 31 Décember 2022 142,722
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FAMILY HOMES FUNDS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

13, Rightof use assets

Cost

At L January 2023
Additions

At 31 December 2023
Accumuiated Depreciation

At I January 2023

‘Charge for the year

At 31 December 2023

Nef book values
At31 December 2023

At 31 December 2022

14. Investment Properties

N'0B80
151,400
80,683

232,083

93,955
59, 5"?2

Cost of investment properties is categorized asfollows:

At 31 Detemnber

The Company has elected to vaiue invesiment properties at cost.
The Company's wvestment properties comprises of parcels of {and in Kano and Ogun States, There are no
resfrictions: on -the reaﬂsabli:ty of its investment properties. The mvestment properties viere revalued by,
independent profess;onaliy qua]med vaiuers who hold recoqnlsed re1evant profess:onal qua[zflcatmns ‘and have'
relevant experience i the location and categorles of the mvestment propertaes valuad. As at 31 December 2023
the fair value of the 1nvestment propertiesis N6.08 billion (2022: ‘83,901 billion). '

Basis of valation

2022
w000

1,259,966

The determination of fair market values for the investment properties was based on-a combination of methods
including Investment/ Iicofme Capitalisation, Direct Market Comparisori and: Depreciated. Refilacement Cost
meathods of valuation-on.the assumgption of continuity in-their-existing uses.. '
Thefair market valuesare the estirmated amounts for which assets should exchanige ofyibe vaiuation date. between
a willing buyer and a wilting seller at'arm's fength transaction after proper marketing whereéin part:es haid eath

acted knowledgeably; prudent] y and withoul compuls;on
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I FAMILY HOMES FUNDS LIMITED'
i NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
i 15  Loans receivabié - Continued

Yobe State

A total Ipan of N15.96 blihon was dishursed to Yohe State Government in 2020 at an interest rate of a%

-with atenar of 120 months for the building 3600 units of low-cost houses. The loan has a moratorium of

12 months for inferest-and 48 months for the principal, Af the exptratlon of the moratcrium, repayment'
will be made on a monthly basis. In addition o the interest, management fee is alse applicable at the rate
of 0.5%annually payable monthly, Yobe State government ioan facility was foan enhanted by N5. billion in
Aprit 2022 st the same interest rate of 9% bringing the totalloan to N20.9 billion.

Niger 5{ate

A foan of N 282 million was disbursed to Niger State Governmént in 2021 which was thé first tranche of
the lean at an interest rate of 9% with a.tenor of 120 months for.the building of 1220 low-¢ost housas.
The facifity was further enhanced by N1.6 bilfion in 2022, The loan has.a maratorium of 12- months-for
interést and 24 months for the principal. At tha-expiration of the moratorium, repayment will be made on
a monthly basis. In adiition, the toan may be restructured soonest 1o have adequate funding for the
project. The interest Is charged accordingly, managemeri fee is also- applicatile at the rate-of 1% annually
payable monthly.

Green Pastures Loan

A total loan of N756.5 million was disbursed to Green Pasture (Private loanj in 2'0'2'1 at.an interest rate of
9% with a fenor of 12 months for the buliding.of 1000 low-cost houses.. The. joan has a moratorium of 9°
micinths for both interést-and principal. The same facillty was enhanced by N353.9 million in- 2022 Atthe
expiration af the moratorium, repayment will be made on @ quarterly basis. In addition to the- mtorest

manageiment fee is also applicable at the rate of 1% quarterfy. An additionaf loan of N4BZ.9 mijtion-at 12%

with:a tenor of 18 months was dishursed.to GreenPasturein 2023.bringing the total loan amount to N1.556
billien.

Kebbi State

A logn faciiity of N3.99 billion was disbursed to Kebbi State Govérniment ifv Jantary 2022 at an'interest/

rate of 9% with a tenor of 96 months for the building of €20 units of low-¢ost houses. The foan has a
moratorium of 12 rronths for inferest and 12 months for the! principal. At the expiratiorr of the
moratoriin, repayment will be-madé on a-monthly basis. in addition to the interest, management fee is
also-applicable at thé rate of 1% annually payable mianthly.

Akwa-lbom State

In.March 2022, a loan of N5 billion.wés disbursed.té Akwa:-lbom State Government at an. interest rate of
9% With a tenér of 96 months for the building of 650 units: of low-cost houses: Theloan.has a moratorjum
of 12 months for interest and 12 months for thie principal. Atthe: expwation of the moraterium, repayment
will be made inonthly, In addifion-to'the interest,.management fee is also applicable at the rate of 1%
annually payatie monthly,

Kaneo State

A foan of N3.81 b;l!lon ‘Was drsbursed to Kano State Housing. Cacperalien in March 2022 at an interest
rate of 9% with & tanor of 12-manths for the bu:ldmg of 500 units of low-cost housés, The-foan has a
maratorium of. 12 months for the principal, In addition, interest (0%) and management: fee at the rate of
1% annuaiiy payable guarterly. The mofatorium on the facility expired during the pericd and {He principal
repayment of N3.81 billion was made in oné fump:sum.
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FAMILY HOMES FUNDS LIMITED
'NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

15  Loansrecejvable - Continued
Zamfara State

In May 2022, a Joan of N5 biliion was disburseéd to Kebhi State Government at an inferest rate of 9% with
a tenor of 96 months for the building of 600-units of low-cost houses. The loan has a moratorium of 12
menths for interest and 12 months for the principal. At-the expiration of the maratotium, repayment:will
be made monthly. In addition to the interest, management fee is also applicabile at the rate of 1% annually

payable'monthly.
Gombe State

‘Goinbe State government was availed a lpan facility of N5 biition in November 2022 at an interest rate of
9% with a tehor of 96 months for the huilding of 600 units of lew-cost houses. The loan.has a moraterium
of 2 months for interest and 12 months for the principal. At thé expiration of the moratorium, repayment
will bé made-riionthly. in: addition-fo the interest, management fee is also applicablé at the rate of 1%

annually payablie monthly.

Enugu State

A foan of NO.87 billion was disbursed to Enugu State Housing Development Cooperation in January 2023 at-an
interast rate of 10% with a tenor of 36 months for the building of 250 units of low-cast houses. The leanrbasa
moraforiumof 18 months for the principal and interest. At the expiration of the mofatorium, repayiment will-té

méde monthly. In addition, interest (10%) and management fee at thie rate of 1% annually payaife monthly.,

15.1 ECL Impairment Provision

A reconciliation of the allowance for impairment losses on oan receivables

As at 31 December 2023, loan receivables impairment provision was N 402,563,000.(2022: N 63,703,000
Movements in the provision for impairment of [oan receivables were, as follows

D 000
At 1 January 1,102,149
‘(Recovered)/chirge for the year (Nole 15) (2,446)
At:31 December 1,092,703

16  Property inventories.

Properties u rider construction 15,711,032
Finishéd propertiés: : 6,031, 14

Al lnventories ahova are cartled at lower of cost-and nef realizable valus,

EL)

2022
000,
699,586
402,563

2022
w000
13,948,047
5,848,337
19,796,384
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FAMILY HOMES FUNDS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

17. Trade and other receivables

Share’'capital receivables

Advances®

Staff.advances

Withholding tax (WHT) receivables**
Interest recaivables

Ofher receivables

Value Added Asset*+¥

* Advances r_ela_tes te insuranr:_e, service.charges and impr.ovement' to-the building space.

2023

N'000

510
166,797
158,684

1,788,575
554,139

2022

000
130,177
107,604

29,296
1,379,168

240,797

“*WHT raceivables are attributable to deductions by Access Bank on Interest income earned on placement.

***Value Added Asset relates to-advance payment made to Federal Inland Revenue Services which is claimable’

from the customers.

18. Cashand cash.equivalents

Cash at hand

CBN operafional account

Fixed deposit and-treasury bills
CBN freasiry single account
GBN AfDB HTO account:

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash.equivalents include cash at hand andinit

2023,
N'DOD

57

32,076
36,386,827
427,684
18,142,200
54,088,845

2022
N00O

87

3877
29,257 956
1,338,751

30,5957

he

banks. Cash and cash equivaie_n_ts_'at_jthe\_en__d of the reporting period as shown E'n_=.t_h_e.5tatement of n_:-_ash flows
is same as in the statement of financial position.

19 Issued Capital
1,000,000 ordinary shares of N1 each

201 Capital grant

At 1 January
Additions

Af 31 'December

2023
000

85,500,000

3,500,000

89,000,000

2022
WO0D

78,500,000
7,000,000

As part of Federal Government of Nigerfa's Social Investment Programme, N10O billion was earmarked
fromm the 8500 billion Social Intervention Programme Fund for atfordable hausing, This fund (N10G billion)
is to be managed by Family Homes Funds Limited (FHFL) for the deveiopment and sale of houses fo
iow/middie income families atiow cost, Of the tatal amount of M100 hillion that was approved by the FGN,

the Ministry of Finance has released a total of ¥89 biflion at the end of the reporting year.
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FAMILY HOMES FUNDS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

20.2

21.

21,1,

22.

Deferred Income grant:

2023 2022

MN'O00 N'O00

At 1 January 4,800,000 -
Additions 1,300,000 4,800,000
Disbursements (219,355) -
5,880,645 4,800,000

_Th_e Federal Minfstry of Finance, Budget and National Planning released an additional-sum of & 1;3.&_3?[11_0_1_1__
grant durifg the year for the implementation of National Poverty Rediction with. Growth Strategy
(NPRGS)”. This shouid be categorized under income grant. However, the grant is deferred until the
performance abligations is fulfilied.

2023 2022
Retained earnings N'OQO 000
At 1 January 3,636,424 2,428,872
Profit for the year 3,663,253 _1,450.229
2022 final dividend (72,511) '(242;_6.7’-7}
At 31 Decéinber 7,227,166 3,636,424

Basic earnings/(loss) per share

Basic earnings/(loss) per share is ¢alculated by dividing the profit/(loss) for the year attributable fo
ownees of the Company by the weighted average number df ordinary shares outstanding during the vear.
The followihg reflects the incame ahd shiare data used in the basic EPS computations:

2023 2022
N000 %000
Profit:attributable to owners of the Company 3.663;253 1,450,229
’0.0D'. ‘200
Weighted average number of ordinary shiares for basic EPS 1,000 1,000
Basic earning/(loss) per share (N 3,663 1,450
Trade:@nd other payables _ . o
Accruals ' 456,374 476,097
Deferred income 5,597.816. 3,255,835
Payroll deduction fiabiiities - 90276 - 158,652
Other tax liabilities (Note 22.1) : 76,865 245 633
Dividend payable (Note 22.2) 72.511 123,765
Other payables’ 1,120 62,636
6.294,962. 4,322,618

Deferred incame for the'current year consists advance received from customers who are vet to complete
the paymentfor intended house,

Payroll deduction includes. liabilities in respect of accrued salaries, National Wousing fund (NHF) and
Employee compensationscheme.

No interestis charged on Trade and other payabies. The directors consider that fhe carrying -amount of
trade payables approximates ko their fair vaiue.
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FAMILY HOMES FUNDS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued
22.1 Other tax liabifities.

Value acdded tax

Withholding tax paydble
Péarsonal income tax.

22.2 Dividend Payable

At 1 Januarv

Cash paid
At 31 December
23. Loans andborrowings

African Development Bank
FHFL Sukik issuance programme bond

Current
Non-current

23.1- Movement in igans and borrowings is-3s shown below:

At 1 January
Additions
Repayment during the year

Repayment of_accrue'd;'iease rentat
Accruediease rental
At 31 December

FHFL Sukuk jssuance programme bond

2023
N'000
123,765
72,511
(123 765)

18,142,000
27331877

4,514,768
40,959,309
45,474,077

30,388,126
18,142,000
{2,911,886)

45,618,240
£1,336,597).

1, 192 434

45 474 o7

2022
®'000
158,500
85,513
1,620

242,677
(1 18 91 2)

1-23.765

30,388,126

30,388,126

4,748,684
26,139,442

30,388, 126

10,595,833

20,000,000
(948,671)

29-,6_47,:_1_6_2.
(595,833)
1, 336 ?9?

This represents FHFL Sukuk issuance programme bond of N1 bilion ® 13% lease rental rate and' N20
bsltlon @ 14% iease rental rate, Famrly Homes Funds lelted has ra:seci all the series of N30 blllmn and

African Development Bank

Aloar facility of $60 millich dollars 81 a negotiated rale of 2.74% was Secured during the year Tor thie hewly
established Help-to-Own product. The loan i5 o be disbursed in three tranches of 520 miillion dollars. The
first tranche of 520 million was drawn down in November 2023: This product i$ primarily mednit to heipto
reduce mortoage rates by contributing forty percent (40%) of the mortgage amount at an average rate of
4,84%. The lpan is for atenure of 25 years and has a 7-year moratorium on interest and principal.
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23.2

23.3

24.

24,1

FAMILY HOMES FUNDS LIMITED

.Sinking Fund Investment

Investment

NQTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

2023
H0O00
5,557,888

5,557,688

2022
w000
6,253,845

6,253,845

The sinking fund investment relates to the amount paid in advance to the Joint trustee account which will
be Used to settle both. principal and-lease rental on Sukuk band future repayments. Th:s amount was later

te-nvested by the trustee @ interest-rate of 3%.

Lease Rental Accrued 2023 2022
000 NO00

COpening balance 1,336,797 ‘595,833
Lease rental for the year (Note 7.13 3 '.736 35? 2,011,103
5 073, 154 2,606,936,

Payment in the yeai 3. 880 ?20) (1,2701139)'
1,192,434 1 336 ?9?

Refated party infermation

Related Party Name Year Equity Loan -Grand Total

_ _ H'000 ®O00 MO0
E?;ﬂﬁ?ocial Intérvention Programme 2623 | (89,000.000) .| 89,000,000y
2022 | (85,500,000) - |..(85,500,000)

Remuneration of Key Management Personnel

The remunerations of the noh-executive directors are sel out below in.aggregate for each of tha categories

specified in IAS 24-Related Party Disclosures.

Short term Benefits
Fees
Others

Bioken into:

OfherDirectors

2023
N000
73,013
‘89,397

-162 409

31,250

2022
MWO00 .
84,700

41482,

126 182'

The hufmber of Directors of the Company whose enioluments diring the year were within the bands stated.

Emoluments
N.1,000,001 and above

A3

‘Number

O

1

Number

oo




FAMILY HOMES FUNDS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

25,

25.

Financial risk management objectives a_nd policies

The. Company's prin;ipai'finan;ﬁal iiabil'it_ies comprise of [oans-and borrowings and trade payables.. The main
purpose of these financtal ffabilities is. to finance the Company’s operations. The Company's principal financial
assefs inchude frade and other receivables, and cash and shortsterm deposits that derive directly from its

-operations. The Company is exposed t0. marketf rlsk credit risk and: fiquidity risk.

The Company's senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Board of Directors provides
assurance to the Company's sehior management that the Company’s finabcial risk achwt:es are’ governed by
appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and. managed in-accordahnce
with-the Compariy's poficies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of thess risks, which are summarised helow.

. ‘Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair valug of future cash flows of a financia! Instrument will fluctuate because of
chandes in market prices. Market risk comprise three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price
risk, such as commodity risk. Financial instruménts affected by market risk include cash and stiort-term deposits;
staff loans and loans and borrowings.

Financial risk management objectives and policies-Continued:

a. Market risk: Gontinued

wae_-sensétivity analysis In the following sectio_ns_' relate to the position as at 31 December 2023, 31 December
2022, The'sensitivity analysis has been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt and the proportion of
financial instruments in foreign curréncies are all constant.

Tha analysis exciudes the im_pacf of movenients in market variables on: the carrying vélues of pension and other
post-retirement-gbligations and provisions,

The foliowing assumplions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analysis:-

The-sensitivity of the relevant statement of profit or loss'and other comprehensive income iten fs the'effect.of the
aSSUfhedfhEhgéSih'i‘esp'é(':fi\i'é"ma}"k'éf risks. This is'biased on‘the financial assets and financial liabiljitiés held at 31
December 2023 and 2022.
interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the visk that the fair value or future cash fiows of a finahcial instrument will fluctuate becalise
of changesin marketinterest rates, The Company's expasure to the risk of changes in marketinterestrates relates

‘primarily te. the Company’s debt obligations. The! Company manages its interest rate risk By having a’balanced:

portfalic of fixed:-and.variable rate loans.anid borrowings. i there]s any changein interestrate policy, the Lompany:

re-negotiates with ifs banks taking into consideration the Company's.targeted margin.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency-risk-s the:risk that the fair value or future cash flows of -a finahcial mstrument Wlﬂ quctuate- -

because of changesin forexgn exchange. rates. The Company s exposure-to the risk.of changes in; formqn exchange.
ratesrelates primarilyiothe Cgmpanv 5 ope.r_aftmg activities when Fevenue or expense is denominatedin adifferent

-currency from the Company's presentation currency. The company has no receivables denominated in foreign

currency,

Foreign currency sensitivity

This demonstrates the Sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD exchange rate, with-alf other variables.
held constant. Thé impact an the Company's loss before faxis due to.changes inthe fair value of mionetary assets

and liaghlities. The Company has no exposure to ferelgn currancy changes for all currencies as it operates only in
Naira..
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f NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

d. Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a-financial instrument. or customer
contract; !eadmg to a financial loss, The Compariy s exposed ta-credit risk from its gperating actlwtles primarily
trade receivaties and from its financing activities, including cash and short-term deposits, foreigh- exchange
transactions and other financial instruments..

Customer credii risk is managed by gach business unit subject to the- Company s established policy, procedures and
control reiatang to custorner credit risk management Credit quality of the customer is-assessed based on an
extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit {imits.are defined in accordance with this assessment

. The company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy countarparties, as a means of mitigating the

B risk of financial loss from defaults. A sales répresentative is attached to each custemer arid-outstanding customer
recelvables are regularly mornitared by the represeniative. The requitement for impairment is analysed-at each:

{ reporting date on an individual basis for ali customers. The campany évaluates. the concentration ‘of fisk with
respect to trade receivablesas customers consist of reputable state government and private firm that are.subjected

[ to financial scrutiny by various regulatory bodies. The: company's maximuni exposure to credit risk for the

- components of the statement of finahcial position is its carrying améunt.

!

[

Cash and shart-term déposits

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions'is managed by the Company's. freasury.department
in- accordance with the Company's palicy. Surplus furids are spread amongst reputable finantial institutions and

e funds must be within treasury imits assignéd to each of the counterparty. Counterparty treasury limits are
i reviewed hy the Company's Chief Financial Officer periodically and may be updated throughout the year subject1g.
l dpproval of the Chief Financial Officer. The limits are set to minimize the coricentration of risks and therefore

mitigate financial loss through potential counterparty's-failure. The company's maximum exposure to credit risk
l for the components.of the statement.of financial posttionds its carrying amount:

Trade receivables.

‘For trade-receivables, the Company applied the simplified approach in:computing ECL, Therefore, the Company o
I doés not track changes in credit fisk, but instead recognises a foss aliowance based on lifefime ECLs at each

reporting date: A impalrment analysis {s performed at-each reporhng_ date: Using a provision matrix o measure:
expected credit losses:(ECL). The provision rates are based on days past due. for groupings of various. customier
segiments with similar loss patterns.(i.e., by geographical region, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters:
of ¢radit or othar forms of credit insurance). The calculation reflects the. probability Welghted outcome, the time:
value. ot mongy and‘reasonable and-supportable information that is available at-the réporting date about past
events, current condifions and forecasts of future Bconomic conditions. Generally, trade receivables.are written-
‘off'if past dite for more'than one vear and are naf subject to enforcemiant activity, The maximum éxposure to credit
-risk af the reporting date Is the.carrying value of each class of finantial assets dis¢losed in-Ndte 17. The Cnmpany'
does not hoid collateral as security.

Loss rates are calculated uszng a.'roll rate’ method based on the probablllty ofa. recewable progressmg through' o
successive stage de!inquency to.write-off. These rates are-muitipied by scalar factors to reflect differences
between economic conditions during the period over which fhe historical data Ras been collected, current

A conditions and:the-Company's view of economic conditions over the expected lives of the receivables,
§ Expected credit loss measurement - other financial assets
I The Company applied the general approach in computing expected credit losses(ECL) for intercompany recelvables

and short-term.degosits, The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt
‘instruments not held at fair value througiy prefit or loss, ECLs are based én the differehce between the contractual
L cazh fiows due in accordance with the confract and sl the cash fiows that the Company expects o receive,
discounted at an approximation of the origingl effecfive interest rate.
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FAMILY HOMES FUNDS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - Continued

25.

Financizal.risk management objectives and policies-Cortinued
Expected credit loss measurement - other financial assets - Continued

ECLs are recognised in two stages, For credit exposures for which there has ot been @ material increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, ECLs. are provided-for credit losses that result from default events that are possible.
within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credil exposures for which there has been'a material.
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowangce is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life: of the exposure, irrespective of the timing.of the default (a lifetime ECL).

The ECL is determined by projecting the Probability of Pefault (PD), Loss Given Default {LGD) and Exposure At
Default (EAD) for each future month and f’or each individua! exposure: These three compenents are multlphed-
together and adjusted for the Elkei:hood of survwal {i.e. the exposure has hot prepa:d or.defaulted in an earlier
monthy. This effectively calculates an ECL for-each future manth, which is then discounted back to the reporting
date and: summéd. Thé disceunt rate used in the ECL calctlation is the original effective intarest rate or an
approximation’ thereof.

The 12-inonth and Lifetime PDs are derived by mapping the intérnal rating grade of the obligors to the PD term
structure of an external fating agency for-all asset classes. The 12-monthand lifetime £ADs are determined based
on the expected payment profite. which varies by product type. The assurmiptions: underlyirig the ECL calculation -
such as How the-maturity profile of the PDs, eic. -are monitored and reviewed on a requiar basis. Thére.haveé been
no. matertal changés. lii estimation techniques or. material assumptions made duririg the reporting périod, The
material .changes ih the balances of the other financial asséts including information about their impalrment
allowance are-disciosed below respectively,

The-Company cansiders 3 finan¢ial asset in-default when. tontractual payments are 90 days past due. However; in-
certain cases, thé Company may also consider a finaricial. asset to be I default when intérnal. 6r external
infarmation Indicates that the Company is Unfikely to receive thie putstanding contractual amounts in.full before
taking into account any.credit enhancements held by the Company. A finangial asset is written off when there fs no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows,

Analysis of inputs to the ECL.mode! under muitiple .economic scenarios

AR overview of the approach to estimating ECLs is set obf in Note 3 Summary-of material accounting policies and
in Note 4 Material-accounting judgemeants, estimates and assumptions, To ensure completeness and accuracy, the.
GComipany gbtains the data used from third party sources {Central Bank of ngerla ngerla Burgau of Statrstlcs,-
Trading.econiomics, ete:) and:a team of expert within its créedit risk departingnt verifies the accuracy of inputs to
the Coipany's ECL models including determining the weights atfributable to-the multiple’ Scenarios. The:following
tables set out the Key drivers of expecied loss and the assumptions used for thé Company's base case estimate,
ECL4 based ofi the base case, plus'the-effect of the use gf multiple: economic scenarios ds-at. 31 Décember 2023,

The tables show the valies. of the Key forward logking ecohomic variahies/assumptions: used in éach of the
economic scenatios for the ECL taléulations. The figures for* Subsequent years! represent a lgny-tern average

and so are.the same for-gach scenaria..

Key Grivers .| ECLscenario. | Assigned. | 2022. | 2023 . | Subsequent |

L prabability years

31 December 2023 ' : _
Inflation Rate _ Unturn 1% 7.64% 1 27.63% 27.63%
Based case B0% 10:00% 28.92% 28.92%
Dawntirn 8% . 13.39% 1 30.0%% 30:05%
Unemployment Rate Upturn. ' 11% 26.56% 27.92% 27.92%
Based case. 0% 32.00% 1 30.06% 30.06%
.. Bowniturn ) S 33.33% | 32.15% 32.15%
Crude oil Price (USD per-barrel) Upturn 11% 50.48% 40,08% A0.08%.
Based case- BO% 40.50% 1 31.32% 31.32%
Downturn ' 9% 32.18% 29,894 29.89%
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Excessive-risk concentration

Concentrations arise when a numbeér of counterparties are engaded in similar business activities, or activities in
the same geographical région, or have economic features that would cause théir ability to meet contractual:
obllgat!ons to be similarly affected by changes in ecénomic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate

the relative: sensitivity of the Company's performange to develtpiments affecting g particular industry.

In-orderto avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Campany's policies and procedurss include specific-gu_i_&el_i_n'es-
to-focus on the maintenance of a diversified portiolio. Idenfified concentrations of credit risks are controlied and

managed accordingly.

Liquidity risk

The Company monitors its risk to a shortage of funds. The Company’s objective is to'maintain a balance betveen
continuity of funding arid flexibility through the use.of FHFL Sukuk Bond Issuance Programme. The Compatiy:
assessed the concentration of risk-with:respect to refinancing its debt and conctuded it to be low. Actess to
sources of funding is sufficiently avallable.

THe table bei_o_w summarises the maturity profilé-of the Company's finaricial liahilities based on contractual

undisceunted payments.

Liguidity risk-Continued

Contractual

Cn

S : <3 Jtol2 e N
Uﬁd_l_sc_eu_ntgd deman months months 2 to-o years Ca_rryi_nq
cash flow d value
31 December 2023 N.OOD | =000 N Q00 X000 N 000 w000
Non-nterest-hearing loans 45,474,077 ~] 4,514,768 | 40,959,309 | 45,474,077
and barrgwings ' ' _ ' ' ' ' ' '
Trade and other payables* 6'\%9'4'%2 ' ) 50'0".392 .5"?94’.5?0' .“. 6294962 |
.5‘1,;?69,039 -1 500,392 110,-'309._,338 440,959,309 51,769,039
31 Decembeér 2022
Nen-tnteérest-bearing loans et e e e mga | me g 445 | an s 1
Trade and other payabies* 4 322'6-18 -1 310,911 ] 4,011,707 - -4 -3-22--618:
34, 710 744 - 310,911 8,260,391 -'26 139 442 E 34 Zi0; 744:

*Withholding taX and VAT payables aie not considered as fihandial instruments,. hence they werd excuded from
trade and otherpayablesin the above tabls.
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26

Fair values

Set out below, is a comparison by ¢lass of the carrying amounts and fai¥ value of the Company's financial
instruments, {oans and receivabiés and other financial llabilltles) other than those with carrying .amounts are

reasonable approximations of fair values;

Carrying amouit Fair Valde
2023 2022 2023 2022
w000 ®000 000 M 000
Financlal assets: '
Trade and othér receivables 2,668,705 1,907,553 2,668,705 1,907,553 |
Loan receivable 67,729,377 69,137,600 67,729,377 69,137,600 |
Cash & short-term Geposits 54,988,845 | 30595711 | 54088,845 | 30,595,711

125,386,927 1_01."640.8_64 125,386,027 | 101,640,864

Financla tiabilities:
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 45,474 077 30,388,126 | 45474077 | 30,388,126
Trade and other payabjes® _ 6,294,962- 4,322,618 '6'.294.9_62_. 4,322,618

51,769,039 | 34,710, 744 51 769 039- a4, 710 T44

The management assessed that cash and short-term deposits, bank overdrafts, trade. and otfier payaties
approximate their carrying amounts largety due to the shiort-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair value of the financial assets and fiabilities 'is included at the amount at which the instriment could be
exchanged in-a current transaction Between willing parties, otherthan in.a forced.of liguidation saje.
The following methiods and-assumptions wWere used to.estimate the fair valties:

Loﬂg term frxeci rate recewablesi borrow:nqs are evaluated by the Cempany based on parameters such: as mterest" '
rates, individual creditworthiness of the staff and the risk charactaristics of the financed projects. Based on Chis.
evaluation; ailowances are taken into.account for the expected:losses of these receivables. As at 31 December-
2023, the.carrying amourits of such: recewab!es were not materially different from their calculated:fair values.

Fair values.of the Company’s interest-bearing borrowings-and foans are. determined by using. Discounted 'Cashf]ow-
(DCF ) method using discount rate that reflects the Company’s.borrowing rate as at the-end of the. reporting period.
The own.non-performance risk as-at 31 December 2023 was assessed to be tmmater:ai

Fair value: hierarchy

As at 31 December. 2023, the: Ccmpany held some financial mstruments carried af fair value on the. statement of:
fznancml pomtlon “The company-usés the foilow]nq hierarchy for determmlng and dtscIosn‘ug the fair value of non'_ _
financial assets by valuation technique

Level 12 guote prices in active markets for identical assets or fiabilities

Level 27 other technigquas for which all inputs which have a material effect on the recorded fair vaiue are:
abiservable, either directly or indirsctly

Level 3: technigues which use inputs that hiave a material etfect on the recorded fair vaiue that aré not based.on
olrservableé market data.
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27.

27.

Fair value hierarchy

Date af valuation Levell ! Level2 Level 3 |
Quantitative disclosures on fair value . L
measurement hierarchy for the CGU 000 %000 ®000.
Financial assets fer which fair values are .
disclosed 31 December 2023 _
Share capital receivable (Note 17) Current 510"
Loan reteivable (Note. 15) Norn-current 67,729,377 |
31 December 2022 _ -
Current - 1,000
Non-current - 69,137,600 1
Liabilities for which fair values are '
disclosed
Non- intérest-bearing loans dnd
borrowings (Note 23)
31 December 2023 45,474,076.
31 December 2022 - 30,388,126

Capital management;

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued capital, preference shares, share
premium and all other equity reserves atfributable to the egquity holders. The primary cbjective of capital

management is to maximise the shareholder value.

In-order to achieve this overall objectwe capitai management, amongst ather things, aims to ensure that'it meets
financial covenants attactied to the interest-bearing loans and borrowmgs Breaches in meeting the financial
toveriants wodld permit the Company to immediafely call lvans and borrowings. There have be&n no-breaches in

the financial covenants of -a’njy' interest-béaring loans-and borrowing in the current pefiod:

The Company. manages Hs capital structure and-makes adjustments in light of chahiges in economic conditions, The
Comparw monitors cagital using.a dearing ratio, which is. net debt.divided by total caplteﬂ plus net debt. The
Company inglides within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrawings, trade arid other pavables, less cash and

short-term deposits,

Capital Manaqement«tbh’finued

Non-interest-bearing loans and borrowings (Note 23)

Trade and other payables (Note 22).
cash and short-term deposits-(Note 18)
Sinking funds investment

Net (asset)/debt

Eguity

Capital and het debt

Gearing ratio

45

2023

N.0CO
45,474,077

6,294, 962'

(54 988 845}
(5 557,888}

(8 ??7 694)

92,228,166

A L R R

83,450,472

2022.

- N OO

30,388,126
4,322,618

(30, 595 711y
(6,253,845

(2_.1-3'8',-8_'1’2.)_

89,137,424
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28.

29,

30.

31,

32,

Capital Commitments
There were no material capital commitments-as-at the reporting date (31 December 2022; Nif)

Guarantees
There were nio guarantees on behalf of Directors during the period (31 December 2022: Nil).

Financial commitments

There were no material financial:comimitrvents as at the reporting date (31 Becember 2022: Nil}

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Therg were no contingent liabilities as at the reporting date (31 December 2022: Nil).

Events after the reporting period

The Directors are of the opinion that there were no events after the reporting date that could have a material effect
on the financial statements of the Company that had not been adequately provided for or disclosed in these
financlal statements.
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FAMILY HOMES FUNDS LIMITED
VALUE ADDED STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Revenue
Finance & other income

Cost of bought-if-goods.and services:
~ local

Value added

Distributed as-foliows:.

To-pay employees:
Salaries, welfare and staff relirement benefits

To pay Goverrment:
Company income. tax

To'pay Provider of Capital:
fnterest

To provide for reptacement of assets
and future expansion of husiness:
- Depreciation of property plant and equipment
= Depregiation of right of useassét.
- Deferred taxation
Amorttsatlon of mtangmte assets
Profit for the year

'

Value-gdded:

retamed for futtre creation of wealth,

51

2023
N:000

6,351,492

4 493, 617

10,845,109.

(1,876 700}

8, 968 409'

981,310
422,471

3,736,357

59,572
(26,363

- 40,375

3 663 253

8 968 409

2022
GO0

5,104,077
2,785,533

7,889,610

(2,942,562)

[y

758,759
5 599,398

41 2,011,103

‘Value added representsthe wealth which the Company has been-abie to créate by its.own and its emp!ovee s efforts.
This statement shows the allocation of that wealth among employees, capital providers, governmerit an_ _jthat

k3
15

12
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Share capital

Captial grant

Retained earnings
Tatal éguity
Nonh-current assets
Non-current liabilities

Net current assets

Net assets.

Revenue

Profit before fax
Income tax expense
Profit/Loss for the year

Basic EPS/(LPS) (Naifa)

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
¥.000 000 N 000 000 NODO
1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
89,000,000  85500,080 78,500,000 65,000,000 20,000,000
7,227,166 3:636,424 2,428,872 2,098 (616,889)
96, 228, 166 89,137, 424 80,929,872 65,003,098 19; 334 111
75,085,270 77027774 44,465,418 40,903,388 1,413,608
(46,839,954)  (30,943,044)  (9,081,658) -
68,012,850 43,052,694 45,546,112 24,099,710 17:970 503
%6, 228 166 89, 137, 424- so 929 872 65,003,098 19 384 111
6,351,492 5,104,077 3,313,234 1,813,269 40,583
4,059,362 2,049,627 2,720,806 626,590 (109,427)
(396,108) (599,398) (294,032) (7,603) -
3,663,253 1,450,229 2,426,774 618,987 (109,427)
3/663.25 1,450:23 2,426,777 618.99 (109.43)
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